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Independent Auditor's Report
To the Members of Aarohi Solar Private Limited
Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements

Opinion

1. We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Aarohi Solar Private Limited ('the Company’),
which comprise the Balance Sheet as at 31 March 2024, the Statement of Profit and Loss (including Other
Comprehensive Income), the Statement of Cash Flow and the Statement of Changes in Equity for the year
then ended, and notes to the financial statements, including material accounting policy information and
other explanatory information.

2. In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the
aforesaid financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013 (‘the Act') in the
manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the Indian Accounting Standards (‘Ind
AS') specified under section 133 of the Act read with the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules,
201Sandometwcounﬁngptindpbsgeneralyacoepﬁedlnlwh.ow\oshhdaﬂahofmmmpmyas
at 31 March 2024,andlsproﬁt(lmbdingw\eroompfehuummoom).ilscashﬁowsandmed\anges
in equity for the year ended on that date,

Basis for Opinion

3. Wemnductedowwdllnaoowdancewimuiesmmmmm:pedﬁedmdersewon143(10)of
the Act. Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor's Responsibilities
fumeMdndmoFimnddsmmmdommpatvwmhdmlownConwnym
aooocdmwiﬂwﬂuCodoolEhicshsuedbymelmﬁWteofChaMmdAocomlantsoflndla(’lCAl')
together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements under the
provisions of the Act and the rules thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibiities in
accordance with these requirements and the Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we have
obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Information other than the Financial Statements and Auditor's Report thereon

4. The Company's Board of Directors are responsible for the other information. Other information does not
include the financial statements and our auditor's report thereon.

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express any
form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our addit of the financial statements, owr espansibility is to read the other information
and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the financial
' ‘ statetmntsotwknowiedgeouainedhmguditoroﬂmwiseappeafsaobemlerialynisswed.

The Director Report is not made available to us at the date of this auditor's report. We have nothing to
report in this regard.

| Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Financial Statements
i 5. The accompanying financial statements have be¥n approved by the Company's Board of Directors. The

Company's Board of Directors are responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of the Act wigh
respect to the preparation and presentation of these financial statements that give a true and fair view of
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the financial position, financial performance including other comprehensive income, changes in equity and
cash flows of the Company in accordance with the Ind AS specified under section 133 of the Act and other
accounting principles generally accepted in India. This responsibility also includes maintenance of
adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding of the assets
of the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and application
of appropriate accounting policies, making judgments and estimates that are reasonabie and prudent; and
design, implementation and maintenance of adequate intemal financial controls, that were operating
effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the
preparation and presentation of the financial statementis that give a true and fair view and are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, the Board of Directors are responsible for assessing the Company's
ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and
using the going concern basis of accounting unless the Board of Directors either intend to liquidate the
Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting process.
Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes
our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit
conducted in accordance with Standards on Auditing will always detect a material misstatement when it
exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the
aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the
basis of these financial statements,

As part of an audit in accordance with Standards on Auditing, specified under section 143(10) of the Act
we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

* |dentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to
fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit
evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting
a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may
involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal
control;

« Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures
that are appropnate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the Act we are also responsible
for expressing our opinion on whether the Company has adequate internal financial controls with
reference to financial statements in place and the operating effectiveness of such controls;

« Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by management,

« Conclude on the appropriateness of Board of Directors’ use of the going concern basis of accounting
and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern.
If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor's
report 1o the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to
modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our
auditor's report. However, future events or conditions may wnumeCompmy to cease to continue
as a going concern; and

« Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the ﬁnancsal statements represent the underlying transactions and events
in s*manner that achieves {2
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We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope
and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control
that we identify during our audit

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

Based on our audit, we report that the provisions of section 197 read with Schedule V to the Act are not
applicable to the Company since the Company is not a public company as defined under section 2(71) of
the Act. Accordingly, reporting under section 197(16) is not applicable.

As required by the Companies (Auditor's Report) Order, 2020 (‘the Order’) issued by the Central
Government of India in terms of section 143(11) of the Act we give in the Annexure A a statement on the
matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order, to the extent applicable.

Further to our comments in Annexure A, as required by section 143(3) of the Act based on our audit, we
report, to the extent applicable, that.

a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our knowledge
and belief were necessary for the purpose of our audit of the accompanying financial statements;

b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so far as
it appears from our examination of those books except for the matters stated in paragraph 13(h)(vi)
below on reporting under Rule 11(g) of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 (as
amended),

c) The financial statements dealt with by this report are in agreement with the books of account;

d) In our opinion, the aforesaid financial statements comply with Ind AS specified under section 133 of
the Act;

€) On the basis of the written representations received from the directors and taken on record by the
Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on 31 March 2024 from being appointed
as a director in terms of section 164(2) of the Act;

f) The qualification relating to the maintenance of accounts and other matters connected therewith are
as stated in paragraph 13(b) above on reporting under section 143(3)(b) of the Act and paragraph
13(h)(vi) below on reporting under Rule 11(g) of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 (as
amended),

g) With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements
of the Company as on 31 March 2024 and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our
separate Report in Annexure B wherein we have expressed an unmodified opinion; and

h) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in accordance with rule 11 of
the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 (as amended), in our opinion and to the best of our
information and according to the explanations given to us;

i.  The Company, as detailed in note 33 to the financial statements, has disclosed the impact of
pending Itigation on its financial position as at 31 March 2024,

ii.  The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts for which there
were any material foreseeable losses as at 31 March 2024,

ii.  There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor Education and
Protection Fund by the Company during the year ended 31 March 2024 ;

iv. (a) The management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, as disclosed in
note 39(h) t& the financial statements, no funds have been advanced or loaned or invested
(either from bo! or securities premium or any other sources or kind of funds) by the

o)
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Company to or in any person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities (‘the intermediaries’), with
the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the intermediary shall, whether,
directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever
by or on behalf of the Company ('the Ultimate Beneficiaries’) or provide any guarantee, security
or the like on behalf the Ultimate Beneficiaries;

(b) The management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, as disclosed in

note 35(a) to the financial statements, no funds have been received by the Company from any
person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities (‘the Funding Parties’), with the understanding,
whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Company shall, whether directly or indirectly,
lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of
the Funding Party (‘Ultimate Beneficiaries’) or provide any guarantee, security or the like on
behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries; and

(c) Based on such audit procedures performed as considered reasonable and appropriate in the

circumstances, nothing has come to our nolice that has caused us to believe that the
management representations under sub-clauses (a) and (b) above contain any material
misstatement.

The Company has not declared or paid any dividend during the year ended 31 March 2024.

vi.  Based on our examination which included test checks, the Company, in respect of financial year
commencing on 1 April 2023, has used accounting software for maintaining its books of account
which has a feature of recording audit trail (edit log) facility and the same has operated
throughout the year for all relevant transactions recorded in the software except that, audit trail
feature was not enabled at database level for accounting software SAP HANA to log any direct
data changes, as described in note 38 to the financial statements. Further, during the course of
our audit we did not come across any instance of audit trail feature being tampered with in
respect of the accounting software where such feature is enabled.

For Walker Chandiok & Co LLP ForDHA N A & Associates
Chartered Accountants Chartered Accountants

m's on No.: 001076NM Firm Registration No.: 51052§C
Anamitra Das Arun Khandelia
Partner Partner

Place: Gurugram Place: New Delhi
Date: 11 May 2024 Date: 11 May 2024

Membership No.: 089125

UDIN: 24062191BKDFXW181 UDIN: 24089125BKASATS233
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Annexure A referred to in Paragraph 12 of the Independent Auditor's Report of even date to the
members of Aarohi Solar Private Limited on the financial statements for the year ended 31 March
2024

In terms of the information and explanations sought by us and given by the Company and the books of
account and records examined by us in the normal course of audit, and to the best of our knowledge and
belief, we report that:

() (a) (A) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars, including
quantitative details and situation of property, plant and equipment and relevant details of
right of use assets.

(B) The Company does not have any intangible assets and accordingly, reporting under
clause 3(i)(a)(B) of the Companies (Auditor's Report) Order, 2020 (hereinafter referred to
as ‘the Order’) is not applicable to the Company.

(b) The Company has a regular program of physical verification of its property, plant and
equipment and relevant details of right of use assets under which the assets are physically
verified in a phased manner over a period of three years, which, in our opinion, is
reasonable having regard to the size of the Company and the nature of its assets. In
accordance with this program, certain property, plant and equipment and relevant details
of right of use assets were verified during the year and no material discrepancies were
noticed on such verification.

(c) The title deeds of all the immovable properties held by the company (other than properties
where the Company is the lessee and the lease agreements are duly executed in favour of
the lessee) disclosed in note 3 to the financial statements are held in the name of the
company. For litle deeds of immovable properties in the nature of land with gross carrying
values of Rs.19.22 million as at 31 March 2024, which have been mortgaged as security
for loans or borrowings taken by the Company, confirmations with respect to title of the
Company have been directly obtained by us from the respective lenders.

(d) The Company had adopted cost model for its property, plant and equipment (including right
of use assets). Further, Company does not hold any intangible assets. Accordingly,
reporting under clause 3(i)(d) of the Order is not applicable to the Company,

(e) No proceedings have been initiated or are pending against the Company for holding any
benami property under the Prohibition of Benami Property Transactions Act, 1988 (as
amended) and rules made thereunder.

(i) (a) The Company does not hold any inventory. Accordingly, reporting under clause 3(ii) (a) of
the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(b) As disclosed in note 39(i) to the financial statements, the Company has been sanctioned a
working capital limit in excess of Rs 5 crore, by banks or financial institutions on the basis of
security of current assets during the year. Pursuant to the terms of the sanction letters, the
Company is not required to file any quarterly return or statement with such banks or financial
institutions,

(i) (@) The Company has not provided any loans or provided any advances in the nature of loans, or
guarantee, or security to any other entity during the year. Accordingly, reporting under clauses
3iin)(a) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(b) The Company has not made any investment, _provided any loans and advances in the nature of
loans, any guarantee or given any security during the year. Accordingly, reporting under clause
3(iii)(b) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.
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Annexure A referred to in Paragraph 12 of the Independent Auditor's Report of even date to the
members of Aarohi Solar Private Limited on the financial statements for the year ended 31 March
2024

(c) Inrespect of loans granted by the Company, the schedule of repayment of principal and payment
of interest has been stipulated and principal amount is not due for repayment currently, however,
the receipt of the interest is regular.

(d) There is no overdue amount in respect of loans granted to such companies.

(e) The Company has granted loans which had fallen due during the year and such loans were
extended during the year. The details of the same has been given below:

Name of the party Total Aggregate amount Nature of Percentage of the
loan of overdues of extension (i.e, | aggregate to the total
amount existing loans renewed/ loans or advances in
granted renewed or extended/fresh | the nature of loans
during | extended or settled  loan provided) = granted during the |

the year by fresh loans year

ACME Cleantech ‘

Solutions Private | 367.70 367.70 | Siended - by 37.09%

| Limited y

ACME Solar |

Holdings Private | 623.80 623.80 m by 62.91%

Limited | ‘

(f) The Company has not granted any loan or advance in the nature of loan, which is repayable on
demand or without specifying any terms or period of repayment

(iv) The Company has not entered into any transaction covered under section 185 of the Act.
As the Company is engaged in providing infrastructural facilities as specified in Schedule
V1 of the Act, provisions of section 186 except sub-section (1) of the Act are not applicable
to the Company. In our opinion, and according to the information and explanations given
to us, the Company has complied with the provisions of sub-section (1) of section 186 in
respect of investments, as applicable.

(v) In our opinion, and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company
has not accepted any deposits or there is no amount which has been deemed to be deposit
within the meaning of sections 73 to 76 of the Act and the Companies (Acceptance of
Deposits) Rules, 2014 (as amended). Accordingly, reporting under clause 3(v) of the Order
is not applicable to the Company.

(vi) The Central Government has specified maintenance of cost records under sub-section (1)
of section 148 of the Act in respect of the products of the Company. We have broadly
reviewed the books of account maintained by the Company pursuant to the Rules made by
the Central Government for the maintenance of cost records and are of the opinion that,
prima facie, the prescribed accounts and records have been made and maintained.
However, we have not made a detailed examination of the cost records with a view to
determine whether they are accurate or complete.

(vui) (a) In our opinion, and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company
is regular in depositing undisputed statutory dues including goods and services tax,
provident fund, employees' state insurance, income-tax, sales-tax, service tax, duty of
customs, duty of excise, value added tax, cess and other material statutory dues, as
applicable, with the appropriate authorities. Further, no undisputed amounts payable in
respect thereof were outstandmg at the year-end for a period of more than six months from
the date they became payable.
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Annexure A referred to in Paragraph 12 of the Independent Auditor's Report of even date to the
members of Aarohi Solar Private Limited on the financial statements for the year ended 31 March
2024

(b) According to the information and explanations given to us, there are no statutory dues
referred to In subclause (a) above that have not been deposited with the appropriate
authorities on account of any dispute.

(vil) According to the information and explanations given to us, no transactions were
surrendered or disclosed as income during the year in the tax assessments under the
Income Tax Act, 1961 (43 of 1961) which have not been recorded in the books of accounts.

(ix) (a) According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not defaulted
in repayment of its loans or borrowings or in the payment of interest thereon to any lender.

(b) According to the information and explanations given to us including representation received
from the management of the Company, and on the basis of our audit procedures, we report
that the Company has not been declared a willful defaulter by any bank or financial
institution or government or any government authority.

(c) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, money raised
by way of term loans were applied for the purposes for which these were obtained.

(d) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company
has not raised any funds on short term basis during the year. Accordingly, reporting under
clause 3(ix)(d) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(e) According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company does not have any
subsidiaries, associates or joint ventures. Accordingly, reporting under clause 3(ix)(e) and
clause 3(ix)(f) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(x) (a) The Company has not raised any money by way of initial public offer or further public offer
(including debt instruments), during the year. Accordingly, reporting under clause 3(x)(a)
of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(b) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of
the records of the Company, the Company has not made any preferential allotment or private
placement of shares or (fully, partially or optionally) convertible debentures during the year.
Accordingly, reporting under clause 3(x)(b) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(xi) (@) To the best of our knowledge and according to the information and explanations given to us, no
fraud by the Company or no material fraud on the Company has been noticed or reported during
the period covered by our audit.

(b) According to the information and explanations given to us including the representation made to
us by the management of the Company, no report under sub-section 12 of section 143 of the Act
has been filed by the auditors in Form ADT-4 as prescribed under Rule 13 of Companies (Audit
and Auditors) Rules, 2014, with the Central Government for the period covered by our audit.

(c) According to the information and explanations given to us including the representation made to
us by the management of the Company, there are no whistie-blower complaints received by the
Company during the year.

(xii)  The Company is not a Nidhi Company and the Nidhi Rules, 2014 are not applicable to it.
Accordingly, reporting under clause 3(xii) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.
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Annexure A referred to in Paragraph 12 of the Independent Auditor's Report of even date to the
members of Aarohi Solar Private Limited on the financial statements for the year ended 31 March
2024

(xii)  In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, all transactions
entered into by the Company with the related parties are in compliance with sections 188 of the
Act Further, the details of such refated party transactions have been disclosed in the financial
statements, as required under Indian Accounting Standard (Ind AS) 24, Related Party
Disclosures specified in Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules 2015 as prescribed
under section 133 of the Act. Further, according to the information and explanations given to us,
the Company is not required to constitute an audit committee under section 177 of the Act.

(xiv)(a) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has
an internal audit system as per the provisions of section 138 of the Act which is commensurate
with the size and nature of its business.

(b) We have considered the reports issued by the Intemal Auditors of the Company till date for the
period under audit.

(xv)  According to the information and explanation given to us, the Company has not entered into any
non-cash transactions with its directors or persons connected with its directors and accordingly,
reporting under clause 3(xv) of the Order with respect to compliance with the provisions of section
192 of the Act are not applicable to the Company.

(xvi) (@) The Company is not required to be registered under section 45-IA of the Reserve Bank of India
Act, 1934. Accordingly, reporting under ctause 3({xvi)(a), (b) and (c) of the Order are not
applicable to the Company.

(b) Based on the information and explanations given to us and as represented by the management
of the Company, the Group (as defined in Core Investment Companies (Reserve Bank)
Directions, 2016) does not have any CIC.

(xvii) The Company has not incurred any cash losses in the current as well as the immediately preceding
financial year,

(xvii)  There has been no resignation of the statutory auditors during the year. Accordingly, reporting
under clause 3(xviil) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(xix)  According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of the financial ratios,
ageing and expected dates of realisation of financial assets and payment of financial labilities,
other information accompanying the financial statements, our knowledge of the plans of the
Board of Directors and management and based on our examination of the evidence supporting
the assumptions, nothing has come to our attention, which causes us to believe that any material
uncertainty exists as on the date of the audit report indicating that Company is not capable of
meeting its liabilities existing at the date of balance sheet as and when they fall due within a
period of one year from the balance sheet date. We, however, state that this is not an assurance
as to the future viability of the company. We further state that our reporting is based on the facts
up to the date of the audit report and we neither give any guarantee nor any assurance that ail
liabilities falling due within a period of one year from the balance sheet date, will get discharged
by the company as and when they fall due.

(xx) According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company does not meet the criteria
as specified under sub-section (1) of section 135 of the Act read with the Companies (Corporate
Social Responsibility Policy) Rules, 2014 and according, reporting under clause 3(xx) of the Order
is not applicable to the Company.
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Annexure A referred to in Paragraph 12 of the Independent Auditor’s Report of even date to the
members of Aarohi Solar Private Limited on the financial statements for the year ended 31 March

2024

(xxi) The reporting under clause 3(xxi) of the Order is not applicable in respect of audit of standalone
financial statements of the Company. Accordingly, no comment has been included in respect of

said clause under this report.

For Walker Chandiok & Co LLP
Chartered Accountants

Firm's R tion No.: 001076N/N500013

Anamitra Das
Partner

Membership No.: 062191
UDIN: 24062191BKDFXW1817

Place: Gurugram
Date: 11 May 2024

ForDHAN A & Associates
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No.: 510525C

Membership No.: 089125
UDIN: 24089125BKASAT5233

Place: New Delhi
Date: 11 May 2024
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Annexure B to the Independent Auditor's Report of even date to the members of Aarohi Solar
Private Limited on the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2024

Independent Auditor’s Report on the internal financial controls with reference to the financial
statements under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013 (‘the Act’)

In conjunction with our audit of the financial statements of Aarohi Solar Private Limited (‘the Company’) as
at and for the year ended 31 March 2024, we have audited the internal financial controls with reference to
financial statements of the Company as alt that date.

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for Internal Financial
Controls

The Company's Board of Directors is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial

- controls based on the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements criteria established

by the Company considering the essential component of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on
Audit of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered
Accountants of India. These responsibiliies include the design, implementation and maintenance of
adequate internal financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient
conduct of the Company’s business, including adherence to the Company's policies, the safeguarding of
its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the
accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the Act.

Auditor's Responsibility for the Audit of the Internal Financial Controls with Reference to
Financial Statements

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls with reference to
financial statements based on our audit We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on
Auditing issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India ('ICAI') prescribed under Section
143(10) of the Act, to the extent applicable to an audit of intemnal financial controls with reference to
financial statements, and the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial
Reporting ('the Guidance Note') issued by the ICAL. Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that
we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance
about whether adequate internal financial controls with reference lo financial statements were established
and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures fo obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal
financial controls with reference to financial statements and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of
internal financial controls with reference to financial statements includes obtaining an understanding of
such internal financial controls, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and
evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. The
procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material
misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our audit opinion on the Company's internal financial controls with reference to financial statements.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls with Reference to Financial Statements

A company's internal financial controls with reference to financial statements is a process designed to
provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliabiity of financial reporting and the preparation of
financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A
company's internal financial controls with reference to financial statements include those policies and
procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly
reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company, (2) provide reasonable assurance
that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance
with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are
being made only in accordance with authorisations of management and directors of the company; and (3)
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Annexure B to the Independent Auditor’s Report of even date to the members of Aarohi Solar
Private Limited on the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2024

provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorised acquisition, use,
or disposition of the company's assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls with Reference to Financial Statements

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls with reference to financial statements,
including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatements
due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal
financial controis with reference to financial statements to fulure periods are subject to the risk that the
internal financial controls with reference o financial statements may become inadequate because of
changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, adequate internal financial controls with
reference to financial statements and such controls were operating effectively as at 31 March 2024,
based on the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements criteria established by the
Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit
of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of
India.

For Walker Chandiok & Co LLP ForDHA N A & Associates
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No.: 501525C

(/)-W

Arun Khandelia

Partner
Membership No.: 06219 Membership No.: 089125
UDIN: 24062191BKDFXW1817 UDIN: 24089125BKASATS5233
Place: Gurugram Place: New Delhi
Date: 11 May 2024 Date: 11 May 2024
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Aaroki Solar Private Limited
CIN-UI210HR2006PTCO38030
Balance Sheet as at 31 March 2004

In Rs. million wnless otherwine stated

As st Asat
R N 3iMarch2024 31 March 2023
Assets
Noa current ssety
Property, plast and equipment 3 2,098.64 135741
Right-of-use assets 4 5138 53.76
Financial asscts
Loans s 991.50 -
Ogher financial assets 6 7.13 38
Defervod tax assets (nef) 7 3421 2.5
Non current tax assets (net) 13 11 08 093
Total noa curvent assets 319594 2,530.19
Current assets
Fimancial assets
Trade recervables 9 68795 971,719
Cash and cash equivalents 10 316 21181
Other bank balances 1 18492 8,30
Loasns 12 - 1,007.21
Other financial assets 12 8504 1.16
Other current zesets i) 035 0.43
Total current assels %442 2,200.70
Assets held for sale 37 97.96 -
Total assets 425632 ﬁ?&
Equity and labilities
Equity share capital 15 2017 20.17
Ocher equity 16 10723 S124
12740 .4
Non current Babilities
Financial liabdtics
Long term bormowings 17 snn 178817
Lease lishilitics 4 42 4.12
Total pon current labllities 1581 3,762.29
Curreat Eabilities
Financial labilstics
Shout serm borrowings 18 19802 93,99
Lease lisbdlities 1 0™ 038
Trade paysbles
Total outstanding dues of micro enferprises and ssmall enterpeises 19 003 0.02
Total cutstanding dues of creditors other than micro enterprises and small enterprises oM 018
Other fmancial liabilites 20 9 29361
Oher currest Nabilitics b | S0 944
Total current liabilities .S 7.9

Total equity and liabilities

Summary of material accounting policies and other explanatory isformation sre stegral part

of financial statements,

As per our report of even date attached

For D H AN A & Associates
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No.: 510525C

14

For and on bebaif of the Board of Directors

Veer Pratap Parveen Tyasgi
Director Diérector
DIN No. 07433691
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Aarobi Solar Private Lissited
CIN-UI2109HR2008PTCO38030
Statement of profit and loss for the year ended 31 March 2024

In Rs. million wnless otherwise stated

For the year eaded For the year ended
Rurticulors N 31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Revenue
Revenue from operations 22 $91.76 £07.89
Other income 23 10822 y &< 18
Total revesue 699.98 615,12
Expenses 3
Finance costs 24 38078 464 30
Depreciation and amortisation expenses 25 9312 232.10
Other expenses 26 91.78 3492
Total expense S65.68 73182
Profit/ (less) before tax 13430 (116.70)
Tax expense/ (credit) 7
Current tax - .
Income tax adjestment relating 10 carlier year - (0.85)
Deferred tax expense/ (credit) T831 (18.51)
Total tax expense/ (credit) 7831 (19.36)
Other comprehensive income . e
Total comprehensive income/ (loss) S&& (97.34)
Earningy (loss) per share 30
Basic caming/ (kss) per share (in Rs.) 21.76 (48.26)
Diluted caming/ (oss) per share (in Rs.) 2176 (48.26)

142

Summary of material accounting policies and other explanatory information are
integral past of financial stalements.

As pet our report of even dale astached

This is the statement of profit and Joss reforred to in our report of even dase

For Walker Chandiok & Co LLP For D H AN A & Associates

For and on beball of the Board of Directors

\J__ 2 fox.. W

Veer [ ] Parveen Tyagl
Director Director

DIN No, 06887340 DIN No. 07433691
Place: Garugram Place: Gurugram

Date: 11 May 2024 Date: 11 May 2024




Ststement of Cash Flows for the year eoded 31 March 2024

Cash wnd cash equivalents at the end of the year

*refer mote 34 for recoociliabon of liabilities from financing activitics

Summary of material accounting policies snd other explanatory information are wegral part of
financial statoments.
As per our report of even dale atiached

For D H A N A & Assockates

142

316

la Rs. million usless otherwine stated
For the year ended For the year ended
sigvceessg 31 March 2024 31 March 2023
A CASH FLOWS FROM OFERATING ACTIVITIES
Profit/ loss before tax 13430 (116.30)
Adjestments for:
Depreciastion and amortisation expense 9312 3210
Finance costs 33078 464 80
Interest income (10822) WA
Impairment loss on fair waloe of asset held for sale (refer note 37) 5729
Loss om sale of fixed assets (met) 599
Excess provision writien back . (0.12)
Net foreign exchange expense - 485
Operatiog profit before working capital changes 563.26 R
Movement s working capital
Decrease in trade recesvables %38 2975
Increase in other cument and non current financial assets {85.49) -
Decrease/ (increase) in other current aad noa curyent assets 008 on
Decrease i rade payahles {0.16) (1441)
Increase/ (docrease) in other current and oo carent financial liabilities 45.40 (51.57)
lecrease i other cument mad non current labilitses (3.64) 198
Cash fows geaerated from operating activithes past workiag capital changes 0434 1,060,584
Income tax (paid ¥ refund received (net) {10.15) 046
Net cash flows generated from operating activities (A) 794.19 1,044.30
B CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Proceeds from sale of purchase of property, plant and equipment 679 -
ived 16,49 364
Fixed deposns matered during the year (168.77) 055
Loans grven to refated parties (net) 99 59 (627.68)
guunm-chmmm {45.90) (623,49)
C  CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES*
Proceeds from long term borrowings - 904.3)
Repayment of long term bonowings (178.08) (700.93)
Repayment of short term bomowings (net) (301.76) (51.76)
Payment of lease labedities - (0.32)
Finance costs paid {377.10) {193.62)
Net cash Nows used in flaancing activities (C) (956.94) (242.30)
{Decrease) increase in cash and cash equivalents (A+B+C) {208.65) 178.51
Cash snd cash equavalents at the beginning of the year 21181 Bw

Lm

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

X,CB.

Veer Pratap
Director
DIN No. 05337340

Parveen Tyagl
Director
DIN No 07433691

Face: Guragram
Date: 11 May 224




Aarobi Solar Private Limited
CIN-UI2109HR2008PTCO38030

Statement of changes in equity for the year ended 31 March 2024

part of financial statements.

For Walker Chandiok & Co LLF
Chartered Accountants
- pn No,; 001076NNS00013

As per our report of even date attached
This is the statement of changes i equity referred 1o in our report of even date

Summary of malcrial accounting policics and other explansatory information are imcgral

For D H AN A & Associates
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No.: $10525C

2l A~
s

Veer Pratsp
Director
DIN No. 06887340

Place: Gurogram
Date: 11 May 2024

For and on behalf of the Baard of Directors

A Equity share capital 1a Rs. million wnless otherwise stated
| Balance as af | Isswed during the Balance as at Issued during the| Balance as at
Paryasiact 1 April 2022 _year 31 March 2023 year 31 March 2024
Equity share capital 2017 - 20.17 . 20.17
B Other equity . In Rs. million ualess otherwise stated
Reserve and surplus
Particalars Seeurities | TAUNVCOmPORRLOf | L e Total
compound financisl =
- instrements >
Balsnce as st 1 Apeil 2022 54793 48.60 (447.95) 148,58
Loss for the year - . (97.34)] (97.34)]
Balance as at 31 March 2023 547.93 4860 ( 51.24
Profit for the year - - §5.99 599
Balance as ot 31 March 2024 547.93 48.60 (489.30){ 107.23
*refer note 29 for serms of compulsory convertible debentures.
1-42

Parveen Tyagi
Director
DIN No, 07433691

Place: Gurugram

Dute: 11 May 2024



Asrohl Solsr Private Limited
CIN-UIZ109HR2008F TOMIS030
Semmary of material accounting policies and other cxplanatory information for the year ended 31 March 2024

1.

1) Corporate Information

Aarchi Solar Private Limised (“the company™) was incorporated on |8 January, 2014 ander Companies Act, 2013, The entity & engaged in the business
of establishing, commissioning, sctling wp, operating and maintaining power peneration using solar, fossil and alternate source of encrgy mad st as
owners, manufactunag, engincers, procurers, buyers, sellers, distributors, dealers and contractors for setting up of power plant using glass bases minrors,
photo voltaic, boilers, turbines and/or other equipments for generating, distribution and supplying of electricity and other products using solar, fossil and
alternate source of encrgy under conditions of direct ownership or through its affilistes, associates or subsidiaries.

The Company owns and operates solar power progect with instalied capacity of 50 MW in the state of Andh Pradesh, The project is intended 1o sell the
power generated, under long tenm Power Purchase Agroconcat with Southem Power Distidution Company, Andhra Pradesh.

The Company docs oot have any employoes on the payroll, for which Compasy has estered into an agreement for operation and maintenance of the
i Maclidias ikadatiacidvs and Ssamsial ¢ ;

The financial statement have been authorised for issoe by the Board of Disectors on 11 May 2024,

i) Amended Accounting Standards (Ind AS) and interpretations effective during the year

Defiaition of Accounting Estimates - Amendments to Ind AS 8

The amendments clarify the distinction betwoen chasges in accounting estimates, changes in accounting policies and the comrection of errors. it has also

been clanified how entities use measurement techniques and impats to develop accounting estimates.

Thas smendment had no impact on the commpany.

Disclosure of Accounting Policies - Amendments to Ind AS |

The amendencots aim o help entitics peovide accommting policy disclosures that ae more wseful by replacing the roguirement for entities to disclose their
“significant’ accounting policies with a sequirement to disclose their ‘matcrial’ accounting policies and adding guidance oo how entities apply the
concept of materiality is making decisions about accounting policy disclossres.

This amendment have bad sa impoct on the Company s disclosures of accounting policies, but not o the measwoment, recogaition of presentation of
any items im the Company’s Ginancial statements.

Deferred Tax related to Assets and Liabilities arisiag from a Siagle Transaction - Amendments (o Ind AS 12
The amendments narrow the scope of the initial recognition exception under Ind AS 12, so that it mo longer applics 10 transactions that give rise to equal
taxable and deductible temporary differences such as leases.

This amendment had no impact on the company,

Material Accounting Policies

Basis of preparation

The financial statements kave been peepared in accordance with Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) notified under Sectiom 133 read with Companies
(Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 (as amended from time to time), Companics (Indian Accounting Standards) (Amendment) Rales, 2016 and
the relevant provisions of the Act. Effective | April 2016, the Company has adopted all the Ind AS and the adoption was carried out in accordance with
Ind AS 101 First time adoption of Indisn Accounting Standards, with 1 Apeil 2015 a5 the transition date. The transition was carried out from ladisn
Accounting Princaples generally accepted in India as prescribed under soction 133 of the Act, read with Rule 7 of the Compamies (Accosnts) Rules, 2004
(IGAAF), which was the previous GAAP, Accounting policies have been consistently applied except where a newly issued accounting standard is
initialty adopted or a revision 10 an existing accoenting standard requires a change in the accounting policy ithero In use. Refer 1 (i1) above for certain
amendments 1o the standaeds which have becoene effective for annual periods begraning on oe afier | April 2023,

The financial staterments are peesented in INR and all valucs are rounded to the nearest million except when otherwise indicated.

Historieal cost convestion
The financial stsements have been prepared on a historical cost convention on a going concern basis except for centain financiad asscts and finmncial
liabalities which are measared ot fadr value.

Use of estimates

The preparation of financial statement in conformity with Ind AS requires the management to make judgments, estimates and sssemptions that affect the
reporied amounts of revenues, expenses, assets and labilities snd the disclosure of contingest liabilities, at the end of the reporting period. Although
Ihese cstimates e based on (he management’s best knowledge of current events and actions, uncertainty aboul these sssumptions and estimates could
result in the cutcomes roguiring & material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets of lsabilities in future periods.

Operating cycle
Based on the nature of the operaticss and the time between the acquisition of sssets for processing and their realisation in cash or cash equivalents, the
Company has rscertained its operating cycle s twelve months for the perpose of currest/non-current classification of asscts and Habilitics.




Asnrobi Solar Private Limited
CIN-U32109HR2008PTCO35030
Summary of material accounting policies and other cxplasatory isformation for the year ended 31 March 2024

204 Revenve
Revenue from contracts with customers 1§ recognised when coatrol of the goods or services me transferred 10 the customer al an amount that reflects the
consideration to which the Company expects to be entitled in exchange for those goods of services.
Sale of power
Revenue from supply of power is recognised net of any cash rebates, when the power is supplied and units of electricity are delivered as it best depicts
the valoe to the castomer and complete salxsfaction of performance obligation
Revenue from sale of power is recognized when persuasive evidence of an armangement exists, the tanifT is fixed or determinable, solar encrgy kilowsts
are supplied and collectabality is reasonably assured. Revenue is based on the solar energy kilowatts actually supplied to customers mubtipticd by the rate
per kilo-watt hosr agreed o in the respective power parchase agreement (PPAs). The solar energy kilowatts supplied by the Cosnpany are validated by
the customer peice (o billing and recognition of revense,

Interest income

Interest income is recoeded usang the effective interest rate (ER). EIR i the rae that exactly discounts the estimated future cash payments or receipts
over the expected life of the financial imstrument or a shorter period, where appeopriate, 1o the gross carrying amount of the fimancial asset or 1o the
amortized cost of the financial lisbility. When calculating the effective interest rate, the Company estimates the expected cash flows by considering all
the contractual serms of the financial instrement but does not consider the expected credit losses. Interest imcome &5 included in other income in the
Statement of Profit and Loss.

205 Borrowing costs
Borrowing costs directly attributable 10 the acqeisitions, construction or prodection of a qualifying asset are capitalised during the period of time that is
necessary to complete aad prepare the asset for its intended use or sale, Other bormrowing costs are expensed in the period in which By e incurred and
reponed in finance costs.

206 Property, plant and equipment
Property, plant and equipments are camed a1 cost less accemulated depreciation, The cost of sems of the propesty, plant and equipment comprises its
purchase price net of any trade discount and rebase, any impon duthes and other taxes (other than those subsequently recoverable from tax authorities),
any directly attributable expenditure on making the assct ready for its intended use, other mcidental expenses and interest on borrowings astributable to
acquisition of qualifying property, plant and equipments upto the date the asset & ready for its intended use.
Whenever significant parts of the peoperty, plant and equipenent are required (o be replaced at intervals, the Compary deprociates them separately based
om their specific useful lives. All other repair and maintenance costs are rocogaised in statoment of profit and loss as incurred.

Depreciation is recognised based on the cost of sssets (other Ban frechold land) using the straight-line method, The useful life of property, plant and
oquipment is coasidered based on life prescribed in schedule 1110 the Companies Act, 2013 except in case of power plant assets, where the depreciation
is charped on the basis of the relevant tarifl regulations based ca technical asscssment, taking into account the nature of assets, the estimated usage of the
assets, the operating condition of the assets, anticipated technical changes, manufacturer warmntics and maintenance sapport. The estimated usefial lives
and depreciation method are reviewed at the end of each reporting period, with the effect of sy changes in estimate accounted for om a prospective basis.

207 Leased assets and right of use
The Company assesses at contract inception whether 8 contract s, or contains, 2 lease, A leasz is defined as “a contract, or part of & comtract, that conveys
the right 1o use an asset (the underlying asset) for a period of time in exchangs for consideration”’.
To apply this defimtion, the Companmy assesses whether the contract meets three key cvaluaticns which are whether:
« the comtract comtains an identified asset, which ts either explicitly sdentified in the contract or implicitly specified by being idemtified ot the time the
assct bs made available W the Company
- the Company has the right 10 obtain substastially all of the cconcenic benefies from wse of the identified asset throughout the period of use, considering
its rights within the dofined scope of the contract
- the Company has the right 10 direct the use of the identified asset throaghout the period of use. The Company assess whether it has the right to direct
“how and for what parpose” the asset is used throughout the period of use
At lease commencement date, the Company recognizes a nght-of-use asset and & Jease lability oa the balance sheet. The right-of-ase asset i measured ot
cost, which &s made up of the initial measurement of the lease liability, any initsal direct costs incurred by the Company, an estimate of amy costs %0
dismantie and remove the asset af the end of the lease, and any kease payments made in advance of the lease commencement dale (et of amy incentives
received).
The Company depreciates the nght-ofiuse assets on a strasght-line basis from the kease commencement date to the easlier of the end of the useful life of
the right-of-use asset or the end of the kase ierm. The Company also assesses the nght-of-use asset for impairment when such indicators exist.

At the commencement date, the Company measures the lease lisbility at the present value of the lease payments unpaid at that date, discousted using the
nterest rate implicit i the lease if that rate ts readily available or the Company s incremental borrowing rate,

Lease payments included in the measurement of the lease liability are made up of fixed payments (inclading in substance fixed), variable payments hased
on = index or rate, amounts expected 10 be payable under a residual value guaranice and payments arising from options ressomably ceran 10 be




Aarohi Solar Private Limited
CIN-US2109HR2008F T CO3S030
Summary of material accounting policies and other explanatory information for the year ended 31 March 2024

(a)
(b)

Subsequent (o mitial measarement, the lisbility will be reduced for payments made mad increased for interest. It is remeasurcd 10 reflect amy reassessment
or modification, or if there are changes In in-sudstance fixed paymsents.

Whien the lcase labllsty is remeasured, the corresponding adjustment is reflected im the right-of-use asset, or profit and loss if the right-of-use asset is
already reduced 1o 2010

The Company has presented the right-of-use assets and lease liabilitics on the face of statement of financial positicn,

The Company applies the short-term lease recognition exempeion 10 its short-term leases. It also applics the lease of low-value assets recognition
exemplion that are considered 10 be low value. Lease payments on short-lom leases and leases of low value assets are recognised as expense o & straight.
line basis over the kease torm.

Impairment of non-financial assets

For impairment assessment purpases, assets are grooped at the lowest levels for which these are largely independent cash inflows (cash-gencraling units).
As a result, some assets are tested individually for impairment and soene are fested at cash-generating unit leved. All individual assets or cash-genenating
units are tested for impairment whesever eveats or changes in clrcumstances indicate that the carrying amount may st be recoverable.

An impairment loss is recognised for the amount by which the asset”s (or cash-gencrating unit's) cammying amount exceeds ity recoverable amount, which
is the higher of fair value less costs of disposal and value-in-wse. To determine the value-in-use, management estimaies expecied futare cash flows from
cach cash-gencrating unit and detenmines s suitable discount rae in order 10 calculate the peesent value of thase cash flows. The date wsed for impasrment
testing procedures are dizoctly linked to the Company's latest spproved budget, adjusted as secessary 1o exclude the effects of future reorganisations and
asset enhancements. Discount factors are determined individually for cach cash-generating umit and reflect current market assessments of the time valoe
of money and asset-specific risk factors,

Impairment losses are charged in the Statement of Profit and Loss. Further, impairment loss is reversed if the asset's or cash-gencrating unit’s recoverable
amount exceeds its carying amoust. The reversal is limited so that the canrying of the asset does not exceed its recoverable amount, nor exceed the
carrying amount that would have been determined, net of depreciation, had mo impainment loss been recognised for the assct in prios years, Sech reversal
I8 recogniscd in the Statement of Profit and Loss enless the asset is carricd o a revalued amoust, in which case, the reversal is treated as an increase in
revalsation.

Financial instruments
Recognition, initial mensurement and derecognition
Financial assets and financial liabifitics are recognised when the Company becomes a party 10 the coatractual provisions of the financial instrument, and,
except for trade receivables which do mot contain a significant financing component, these are measured initially at

2) fair value, in case of financial instraments subsoquently carried at fair value theough profit or loss (FVTPL);

b) fair value adjusted for transaction costs, in case of all other financial mstruments.
Financial assets are devocognised when the contractual rights to the cash fows from the financial asset expire, or whea the fimancial asset and
substantially all the risks and rewseds are tramsferred, A financial Hability &s derecogaised when the underlying obligation specified in the contrct is
discharged, cancelled or expires.

Classification and subsequent measurement of financial assets
Different criterin 10 determine impairment are spplicd for cach category of financial asscts, which are described below.
For purposes of subsoquent measarement, financial assets are classificd in four categorics:
+ Financial assets at amortised cost
« Finmncial asseta at faie value through other compechensive income (FVOCT)
+ Fanmncial assets, derivatives and equaty instruments o FVTPL
(1) Fimancial assets at amortived cost

Classification and subsequent measurement of fimancial abilities

The Company’s financial habilitics include borrowings, trade and other payables and derivative financial instnaments.

Financial labilities are measwred subsequently at smortised cost using the effective interest method except e derivatives and fimancial liabilities
designated at FVTPL, which are canmied subsequently at fair value with gains or losses recopnised in profit or Joss.

A ‘Fimancial asset’ is measured at the amortised cost if both the followiag conditions are met:

The xiset is beld within a business model whose cbjective i 1o hold assets for collecting contractual cash Nows, and

Contractwal 1oms of the asset give rise on specified dates 10 cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest (SPPT) on the principal amount
outstanding.

Afer initial measurement, such financial assets are subsequently mensured m amortised cost wsing the effective interest rage (EIR) method. Amortised
cost is calculated by taking 980 account any discount or peemsium on scgasition and fees or costs that are an integral part of the EIR. The EIR
rmortisation & inchaded in fisance mcome in the profit or loss. The bosses arising from impairment are recopnised in the profit or loss. Amontised cost is
calculated by taking into account any descoumt of premium on acquisition and foes or costs that are an integral part of the EIR.
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Summary of msterial accousnting policies and other explanatory informsation for the year ended 31 March 2024
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Tempairment of financial assets

In accardance with Ind-AS 109, the Company applies expecied credit loss (ECL) model for measurement and recognétion of smpatrment loss for financisd
mssets carmied at amortised cost.

ECL is the difference between all contractual cash flows that are due to the Company in accordance with the comtract and all the cash flows that the
Company expects to receive. When estimating the cash flows, the Company is requéred 1o consider

- Al contractual terms of the financial assets (including prepayment and extension) over the expected life of the assets,

Cash flows fram the sale of collateral held or other credit enhancements that ace integral 50 the contracteal terms,

Trade receivables

The Company applics simplified approach permitted by Ind AS 109 Financaal Instraments, which requires expecied lifetime Josses 10 be recognised from
initial recognition of reccivables.

Other fiasncial assets

For recognition of impairment loss on other financial assets and risk exposare, the Company determines whether there has bees a significant increase in
the credit risk since initial recognition and if crodit risk has increased significantly, i timne impainnent koss Is provided otherwise peovides for 12 moath
expected credit losses,

Classification and subsequent measurement of financlal liabilities

Fimancial lishiltties are measured subsequently at amortised cost using the effective interest method except foe derivalives and financial Nabilities
designated at FVTPL, which are carried subsequently at fair value with gains or losses recognised in profit or loss.

Offsctting of financial assets and fnancial labilites

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the balance sheet if these s & currently enforceable Jegal right to
offset the recognised amounts and there is an intention 10 settle on 3 met basis, 10 realise the assets and settle the liabilities simultaneously.

Derivative financial instruments

The Company uses derivative financial instruments, such as forward currency contracts and interest rate swaps 1o hedge #ts foreign currency and interest
rate risks. Sech denivative financial instruments are initially recogaised at fair value ca the date on which a derivative contract is entered inlo and are
sebsequently remeasared at fair value. Dertvatives are caeried as financial sssets when the fair value is positive und as financial liabilities when the fair
value is segative. Any gains o losses from changes in the fair value of derivatives are taken directly 10 statement of peofit and boss.

Compound financial instruments

Coenpound fimancial instruments are scparated into liability and equity components based oo the terms of contract. On the issuance of compound
financial instruments, the fair valoe of liability component is determined wsing a market rate for an cquivalent imstrument. This amount is classified as a
financial Nability measured st amorntised cost (net of tramsaction costs) until it s extimguished ca conversion or redemgption. The equity component is
classified sader other equity.

(2) Financial assets at fair value throegh other comprehensive income (FVOCT)

Faancial asscts that meet the following conditions are measured initially as well as af the end of each reporting date af fair value, recognised in other
compurehensive income (OCT)

2) The objective of the business moded is achieved both by collccting contractual cash flows and sclling the financial asscts, and

b) The comtractual terms of the asset give rise on specified dates 1o cash fows that represent solely payment of principal and interest

(3) Fimancial assets, derfvatives and equity lnstruments st FVTPL

Financial asscts that do not meet the amortised cost criteria or FVTOCT criteria are measured at FVTPL. Financial asscts st FVTPL are mcasured at fair
value at the end of each reporting period, with any gains or losses arising on romeasuremnent recogmised in profit or loss. The net gain or boss recognised
in profit or kes imcorporates any dividend o inlorest camed on the fimancial ssset.

Income taves

Tax expense comprises carrent and deferred tax. Tax expense is recognised in profit or loss except o the extent that it relates to items recognised directly
n equity or other compechensive income, in which casc il is recognised in cquity of in other comprehensive imcoene.

Carrent tax

Current tax comprises the expecied tax payable on the taxable income for the year. The amount of current tax payable is the best extimate of the tax
amount expected 1o be paid that reflects wmcertainty related to imcome taxes, if any, k is measured using tax rafes enacted or substantively enacted at the
repocting date, Current tax assets and lisbilities are offset ooly if certain criteria is met. Currest Income tax relaled 10 floms recognised im other
comprehensive income or directly in equity is recognised in other compeehensive income of in equity as the case may be.
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Deferred tax

Deferred tax s recognised in respect of temporary differences between the carrying amounts of assets and labilities for financial reporting purposes and
tax base ie. amounts used for taxation purposes.

A deferred tax asset &5 recognised for umesed tax losses, unabsorbed depreciation, deductible temporary differences, to the extent that it is probable that
future tmxable profits will be available agaiant which they can be wtilized. Deferred tax assets are reviewed at cach reporting date and are redoced o the
exient that it is no longer probable that the refated tax benefit will be realised. A defierred tax liability is recognised In respect of taxable temporary
differences.

Deferred tax is measured at the tax rases that are expected to be applied to temporary differences when they reverse, based on the laws that have been
enacied or substantively enacted by the reporting date. Deferred tax assets and Habilitics are offset if there is a legally enforceable right 1o offset current
tax liabilitics and ssscts and they refale 10 income taxes lovied by the same tax ssthority on the same taxsble entity or on different tax entitics, but they
tntend 10 setthe carrent tax liabilitics and assets on a net basis or their tax assots and liabilities will be realized simsdtancously.

Deferred txx relating to iems recognised outside the statemest of profit and loss is recognised outside the statement of profit and loss cither in
compeehensive income of in equity, Deferred tax items are recogaised in comrelation 1o the underlying transaction cither in OCI or directly in equity.

Cash and cash equivalenty
Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash oo hand and demand deposits, together with other shoet-lerm, highly Hquéd investments maturing within 3
months from the date of acquisition. Cash and cash equivalent are readily convertible into known amounts of cash and arc subject to an insignificant risk

of changes in value.

Provisioas, contingent assets and contingent liabilities

Provisices are recognized cnly when there is a present obligation, as 3 result of past events, and measured af the estimated expenditure required to settle
the presest obligation, based on the most reliable cvidence available at the reporting date, including the risks and uncentalsties associsted with the peesent
obligations as a whole. Provisions are discounted o their present valves, where the time valoe of money s material. When discounting is used, the
increase in the provision due o0 the passage of tisne is recognized as a finance cost. The expense relating 10 any provision is presented in the Stmesnent of
Profit snd Loss set of any reimbursement.

Any reimbarsement that the Company &s vinually cenain to collect from a third party with respect 10 the obligation is recognised as a separalo asset.
However, this asset may not exceod the amowst of the related provision.

No liability &s recognised if an outflow of economic resources as a result of present obligations is not probable. Such situations are disclosed as
contingent liabilitics wnless the outflow of resource is remote,

Contingent labilitics sec disclosed by way of note unless the possibility of outflow is remole. Contingent assets are neither recognized noe disclosed.
However, when realization of imcome is virtually certain, related asset is recognizod.

Significant management jedgement in applying accounting policies and estimation uncertainty

When preparing the financisl statement, management makes a sumber of judgements, estimates and asssmptions about the recognition and measurement
of asscts, Habilities, income and cxpenses.

Provision for income tax and deferred tax assety

The Company uses estimates and jodgements based on the relevant rulings in the areas of allocation of revenue, costs, allowances and disallowances
which is exercised while determining the peovision for income tax. A deferred tax asset  recognised to the extent that it is probable that futuro taxable
profie will be available against which the dedoctible temporary differences and tax losses can be wtilised. Accordingly, the Company exercises its
Judgoment 10 reassess the carrying amount of deforred tax assets o the end of each reporting period.

Impairment of non-fimancial assets

In assessing impairment, management estimates the recoverable amount of each asset or cash-gencrating units based on expocted future cash fows and
uses an inlerest rate 10 discount them. Estimation wecertainty relates 10 assumptions about fiture operating results and the desermination of a suitable
déscount rate.

Useful Hves of depreciable assets

The Company reviews the useful life of property, plant and equipment at the end of cach reporting period. This reassesstment mary result in change in
depreciation expense in future periods.

Fair valve measurement

When the fair value of financial xssets and fimancial liasbilities recorded in the Balance sheet cannot be measseed based on quoted peices in active
markets, their fair value is measured wsing valuation techniques mcluding the Discoumod Cash Flow model. The inputs to these models arc taken from
obscrvable markets where possible, but where this is mot feasible, a degree of judgement is required in establishing fair values. Jodgements include
comsiderations of inputs such as liquidity risk, credit risk and volatility, Changes in assamptions sbout these factors could affect the reported fair value of
financial instruments.
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Aarohi Solar Private Limited
CIN-UI2N09HR2008PTCO38030
Sammary of material accounting policies and other explasstory (nformatioa for the year ended 31 March 2024

Earnings per share

Basic camings per share are calculated by dividing the net profit or boss for the period attributable %0 equity shiasrcholders (afier deducting attributable
taxes) by the weighted average mumber of equaty shares outstanding duning the period. Pantly paid equity sharcs are treated as a fraction of an equity
share to the extent that they are entitled to participate in dividends relative 10 & fully paid equity share during the reporting period. The weighted average
number of equity shares outstanding during the pericd is adjusted for events such as bonus issue, boaus clement in & rights issue, share split and revense
share spint (comsolidation of shares) that have changed the namber of equity shares outstanding, without a corresponding change In resowrces.

For the parpose of calculating diluted carnings per shase, the set profit or Joss for the period atiributable 10 equity sharcholders and the weighted average
number of shares cutstanding during the period are adjusted for the effects of afl dilutive potential equity shares.

Assets held for sale

Noa-current assets e chassified as held for sale if their carrying amount will be recovered principally theowgh a sale transaction rather than through
continuing use. This condition is regarded &5 met only when the asset is available for immediste sale in its present condition subject only to terms that are
usual and customary for sale of such asset and its salc is highly probable. Management must be comanitied 10 the sale, which should be expected 10
quatify for recognition as a completed sale within one year from the date of classification. As at each balance sheet date, (he management reviews the
approprimencss of such classification,

Non-current asscts classificd as held for sale are measared at the lower of their carrying amount snd Fair value bess costs 10 scil. The Company treats
sale/distribution of the asset o disposal group 10 be highly prodahle whea:

« the appropriate level of management i commitied 10 a plan 1o sell the asset (o disposal group),

- an active peogramenc 1o Jocate a buyer and complete the plan has boen initiated (if apphicable),

- the asset (or disposal group) is being actively marketed for sale at a price that is reasonable in refation 10 fts cusvent fair valos,

- the sale i expected 1o qualify foe recognition as a completed sale withia oo year from the date of classification, and

- actions required 1o complete the plan indscate that it is unlikely that sigaificant changes (o the plan will be made or that the plan will be withdrawn,
Progerty, plant and equipment and intangible assets once classificd as held for sale/distnibution to owners e not depreciated or amortised,

Amendment 1o Accounting Standards (Ind AS) Issued but not yet effective
Ministry of Corpoeste Affaies ("MCA®) notifies new standards or amnendments to the existing standards under Companics (Indian Accounting Standards)
Rules as issued from time 1o time. During the year ended 315t March, 2024 MCA has not notified any new standards or amendments 10 the existing

standards applicable to the Company.

(Thiy spoce has boen infentionally lefl Nend)




3 Progerty, plant sed equipment

Details of company's property, plant and equipment sad their carrying amoants are as follows:

Summary of material scconsting pelicies and other cxplanstory informarion for the year ended 31 March 2004

Note @

Rs. million enless otherwise stated

Plant and
Particulars Frechold Land” | Total
Gross black
Balance as a1 1 Apeil 2022 1922 394008 295937
AdSsicn during the year . - -
[Disposal/Adjustment - - .
Balance as at 31 March 2023 (LR 394005 Ao
Addation during the yeat . . -
Divposal Adyatment - (2244) (22.44)
Assots chassified m held for sale (refer nose 37) - (26927) f"“%%
Balance & ot 31 March 1024 1922 64834
Accumulated deprociation
Balance as ot 1 April 2022 - 137018 1374
Deprecution chargs for the year . N mwmmn
Daposalt / adjustments - - -
Balasce 20 #1 31 March 2023 - 160137 1,601 586
Depeeciason change for the year* 9074 904
Disposals / adjustments . (9.60) (9.66)
Assets classificd a3 held for sale (r=fer oote 37) - (114.02) (140
Balance ax a1 31 March 2024 . 1,58.93 1.568.92
Net bleck
Balance o 34 31 March 203 933 EXLUNT 135741
Balance as at 31 March 2024 19.22 2079.41 109864

"The uithe deods of all the frechold land are in the same of the Compary and are pledged with te lender.
*During the Current Yoar 2023-24, 3 u part of its annwal exercine of review of eatimates, the Company conductod an operational efficiency review of its solar plasts. The
Company engaged with an expert for the review of aseful life, salvage value. Basis the study, with offect from 01 Apnll 2003 the expected useful ke of selar power plants bt
been revised from 25 years 10 30 years aloag with fevisson in resideal value from 10N 1o 5% st the ead of wefll life Funher, though there & no cortractual cbligation, the
compuay has comidered & comtnetive oblipation, bemg & groon energy company with its commitment towands enviseament. These changes have boen considered as change
 estimate 3 por Ind AS § (Accounting Policics, Changes in Accomnting Estimates sod Errern) and have been sccowmied for prospectively. The impact of above changes i
iscome statement cuerest and future penods is as follows:

For the year
Particolary eaded 31t
March 2024
Impact on Finaacial statement Profit and Lom
Decroase i depreciation expense® (131 9% (109 (130.19) (130.19)
Iscrease in Deferred tax nn nn n nn
Impact ea Fisancal statement Balance shoet
lncrease in Property, plant sed equipment 1198 26217 9234 2255
Increase in deferved tx (322 (6599 (5876} (13153

I * Expocted amoust of the effect = futwee periods on depreciation and deforred costs expense s comguied without comsidering any chanpes for expected capitalsation, tax eate




4 Right of use smets and lense labilitles
Set out below wre the carrying amounts of right of use assets and lease Dabilines and the movements during the year.
1n Rs. million anless otherwise stated

Farticulars
(a) Right-of-ase auets
Comt
Balance as ot | April 2022 .26
Add Additons dering the year -
Balance us o1 31 March 2023 63,26
Add Additions Suring the yrar =
Balance as at 31 March 2024 6326
Accsmulated smortization
Balance an at | April 2022 .12
Amortization for the year 233
Balance as ot 31 March 2000 9.50
Amortizatson for the yesr 238
Balsace as ot 31 March 2004 1188
Net carrying ameunt
Balsace a5 31 31 March 2003 8.7
Bakaace as 31 31 March 2024 $1.38
(b) Laase liabilities In Rs. millioa unlens otherwise stated
A st Asat
e 31 March 2034 31 March 2003 _
Openisg balsace 440 a4
Add Interest on lease Habilities 047 045
ALS Adjustmonts 07 .
Less: Lemse liabalities paid - ((:%
Claaing balance £.01
Currest ar 03
Now-current in an

(i) Total cash owtflow for leases for the year onded 31 Masch 2024 was Rx 0 00 millios (31 March 2023 Rs. 032 millsen).
(i) Also, refier note 36
(1) Variable lease payments
The Compuany does not kave sny leases with varusble lesie payments.
(1) Residual valse guaranton
There are 0o revidual vadee guannteod in the hease contmcts.

(Thir space har Seen imensonally bt Mank)




Asrohl Solar Private Limited
CIN-U32109HR2008FTC038030
Semmary of muterial accounting policies and other explanatory information for the year ended 31 March 2024

1n Rs. million unless otherwise stated
Asat As at
RA—— 31 March 2024 31 March 2023
5 Loans
Unsecured-considered goods
Loans 1o related parties (refer note 28)* 991.50 -
991.50 o

*Loans given 10 ACME Solar Holdings Private Liméted amounting 10 Rs. 623 80 millon (31 March 2023 Rs, Nil) and w0 ACME Cleantech Solutions
Private Limited amousting to Rs. 367.70 mullion (31 March 2023 Rs. Nil) s chargeable to interest @ 9.50% pa and principal will be repayable afier §
years w.e.f. 01 April 2023 and interest is payshle ca yearly basis, (Refer Note 28)

6 Other fimancial assets - non current

Sccunty deposits 7.13 557
7.13 557
7 Deferred tax asscts (nef)
Deferred tax assets arising on:
Unabsorbed depreciation 59368 71017
Lease lisbilitics 16.07 16.05
Others 7332 -
Deferred tax liabilities arising on:
Property, plant and equipment (inclding right-of-use assets) (632.17) (596.84)
Compound financial imstruments (1669) (16.86)
Deferred tax assets (mel) 3421 11252
In Rs. million unless otherwise stated
(Expense) credit
Particulars Asat recogaised n [ "CoBnsed [0 other Asat
(2023-24) 31 March 2023 | statement of profit I'“.l-' . 31 March 2024
and loss
Assets
Unabsorbed deprecaation 71017 (116.49) - 59568
Lease labilities 1608 002 - 16.07
Others - 7332 . 7332
Liabilities
Property, plant and equipment (including right-of-use asscts) (596.84) (35.33)1 . (632.17))
Compound fimancial instramsents (16.86) 0.17 - (16.694
Total 112.52 | (78.31)] - 3421
In Rs. million unless otherwise stated
(Expense) credit
Particulars Asat recegaisedln | TLocogmised in other Asat
(2022-23) 01 April 2022 | statement of prefit ”"’"| bensive 31 March 2023
and loss
Assets
Unabsorbed depreciatson 71338 (3.21) - 71007
Lease labilitics 16,02 0.03 I - 1605
Others 2640 (26.40) . .
Liabilities
Property, plant and equipment (incloding right-of-use assets) (W.?Sq 49M . (596 .84
Compound financial mstruments (17.01 0.15 - (16 86
Total 94,01 18,51 - 112.52




Anrohi Solar Private Limited
CIN-UI2109HR2008PTCO38030
Summary of material accounting pelicies and other explamatory information for the year ended 31 March 2024

Effective tax reconciliation In Rs. million wnless otherwise stated
For the year ended  For the yeur ended

Tirauay 31 March2024 31 March 2023
Loss before tax 13430 (116.70)
Applicable tax rate’ 25.17% 25.17%
Expected tax credit [A] 3350 @937)
Expeascs not allowsble (0.16) 11.74
Temporary differences om which deferred tax is not recognized¥ 45.30 -
Income tax sdjustrment relating 1o carlicr year (0.63) (0.85)
Others 0.00 (0.£%)
Total adjustments [B) 44.51 10.01
Actual tax (benefit) expense [C=A+B] 7831 (19.36)
Total tax incidence 7831 (19.36)
Tax (benefit) expense recogalzed in statement of profit and loss (D] 7831 (19.36)

“The Company had exercised the option under section 11SBAA of the Income-tax Act, 1961, as introduced by the Taxation Laws (Amendment) Act,
2019, while filing return of income for the financial year ended 31 March 202). Consequently, the company had applied the Jower income tax rates om the
deferred tax assets/ liabalities 1o the oxient these are expecied 1o be realized or settled in the future period under the new regame.

#Coasidering the company’s future profitability, deferred tax asset has been recognized only %o the exient of the available toxable lemporary differences.

(This space has been tntentionally left Mank)




Aaxrohi Solar Private Limited
CIN-US2109HR2008 P TCO38030
Semmary of material sccounting policies and other explanstory information for the year ended 31 Murch 2024

In Rs. million usless otherwise stated
Asal Asat

e 31 March 2024 31 March 2023

$ Non currest tax asset
Advance tax (net of provisios) 11.08 0.93
11.08 0.93

9 Trade receivables

Unsecured, considered good* 68795 971,79
687.95 971.79

*Alsa, refer note 33

Trade receivables ageing schedele as at 31 March 2024 and 31 March 2023

In Rs. million unless otberwise stated

Outstanding for following periods from the due date of payment

e ‘r’:':':: Notdue Lo ;‘.“!‘;'. I3years 23years More than3 years el
Undasputed trade recenvables

Considered good” $3.14 5251 5483 284 $0.12 .73 3177 624.94
Disputed trade receivabies

Comsidered good” . . 21.95 41.06 . - - 63.01
Total trade receivable 53.14 5251 76.78 43.90 80.12 69.73 3L 687.95

for periods from the due date of payment

31 March 2023 UM: Not dse :“ﬂll :rm 12years 23years More thaa 3 years Total
Undisputed trade receivables

Considered good” 62.33 s1.17 s1.72 191.73 363 88 - . 720.83

Credit impaired . = - - - - . »
Disputed trade receivables

Considered good - 776 3850 4162 7667 27 914 25096

Credit impaired . . . . - . - -
Total trade receivable 62.33 893 $0.22 233.35 440.55 77.27 9.14 7179
* Includes wninlled revemue of Rs. 53,14 million (315t March 2023: Re. 62.33 million)

10 Cash and cash equivalents
Balances with bank - current accoumts 316 4607
Deposits with anginal maturity of bess than three months* - 165.74
3.16 211.81
"Fixed deposits of Rs. Nil (31 March 2023: Rs. 165.74) are pledged with banks on accowsst of Debt Service Reserve Account (DSRA) but are sccessible by
the Company as per terms of bender.
11 Other bank balances

Fixed deposits with remaining maturity more than 3 moaths and less than 12 months* 184,92

184.92

830
8.30

"Fixed deposits of Rs. 176,58 million (31 March 2023: Rs. £ 30 million) is pledged with basks on account of Debt Service Reserve Account (DSRA).




Aaxrohi Solar Private Limited
CIN-UI2109HR2005 PTCO33030
Summary of material accounting policies and other explanatory lnformation for the year ended 31 March 2024

12 Loans
Laans to related parties
Coasidered good- unsecured (refor mole 28)* - 100721
- 1.007.21

*Loan to related parties imcludes Joan of Rs. Nil (31 March 2023: Rs. 623,80 million) are repayable within 12 months and chargeable 1o interest @ 9.50%
pa and interest accrued amounting to Rs, Nl (31 March 2023: 15,71 million). Loan of Rs. Nil (31 March 2023; Rs. 367.70 million) is interest free and
recovershic ca demand.

During the camrent year, both the above loans have been modiified for repayment tenms exicoding the repayment for $ years ™

Note:
Loans or advances (a the nature of Joans are granted to promoter, directors, KMPs and the related partics (as defined under Companies Act, 2013), cither
severally or jointly with any other person, that are repayable on demand.
31 March 2024 In Rs. million unless otherwise stated
Amount of loan or Percentage to the
advance in the total loans and
Type of Borrower mature of loan advances in the
oststanding nature of loans

Amoant of loan or Percentage to the

advance in the total loans and

Type of Borrower nature of losn advances in the
outstanding nature of loans

Promoter . >
Directors . .
KMPs 3 2
Related Partics 367.70 36.51%
In Rs. million unless otherwise stated
Asat Asat
Particslers 31 March 2024 31 March 2023
13 Other fimancial assets - current
| Receivable from relsted party (refer note 2%) 136 024
| Intercompany interest receivable 86,63 -
Sccurity deposits - 0.92
B3.04 1.16
14 Other current assets
Advance 10 vendors 024 028
Prepadd expenses 0.11 0.15
0.35 0.43

(This space has been insentionally left BNand)




Aarohi Solsr Private Limited
CIN-UR109HR2008PTCO38030
Summary of material sccounting policies and other explanatory lnformation for the year ended 31 March 2024

15 Equity share capital
In Rs. million unless otherwise stated
As at 31 March 2024 As at 31 March 2023
Particulars Number of shares Amount Number of shares Amount
Authorised 1,00,00,000 100.00 1,00.00,000 100.00
Issued and subscribed and fully pad up 20.17,066 20.17 20,17,066 20.17
Total 20,17,066 20.17 20,17,066 2017

1. Reconciliation of equity capital outstanding at the beginning and st the end of the reporting year
In Rs. miltion unless otherwise stated
For the year ended 31 March 2024  For the year ended 31 March 2023

Particulars

Number of shares Amount Number of shares Amount
Al the beginning of the year 20,17,066 20.17 20,17,066 2017
Issued during the year - - - =
Outstanding at the ead of the year 20,17,066 2017 20,17,066 2017
2. Shares beld by bolding Company In Rs, million unless otherwise stated
P - As 2t 31 March 2024 As at 31 March 2023
Number of shares Amount Number of shares Amount
mwm Private Limited* 20,17,066 2017 20,017,066 2017
*inchoding shares hedd by nominee shareholder
3. Number of shares held by cach sharcholder maore than 5% Shares in the
. As at 31 March 2024 As at 31 March 2023
Number of shares % Holding  Number of shares % Holding
mmw Private Limived 20,17.066 100% 20,117,066 100%
4. Sharcholding of promoter .
Sharcholding of promoter is as follows:
Shares held by promoter
Promoter Name s a1 31 March 2024 As at 31 March 2023 "c'::‘“:”"
Number of shares % Holding __ Number of shares % Holding o
Acme Solar Holdings Privaie Limited 20,17,066 100% 20,17,066 100% 0%

5. Termy/rights attached to equity shares

The Company has only oae class of equity shares having par value of Rs 10 per share. Each holder of equity shares is enttled 1o one vote per share.
The Company declares and pays dividends in Indisn rupees. In the cvent of liquidation of the Company, the holders of equity shares will be eatitled
1o receive remaining assets of the Company, afier distnibution of all preferential smounts. The distribution will be in propoction 10 the number of equity
shires hedd by the shareholder,

6. Detalls of shares lssued pursuant to contract without payment being received in cash, alloted as fully paid up by way of bonus issues and
brought back during the last S years for cach class of shares

The Company bas not isswed any shares pursuant 10 & contract without payment being received in cash, alloted a5 fully pasd up by way of bonus shares
nor has there been any buy-back of shares in the carrent year and smmediately preceedang five years.

(This space ks beewn intentionally left bland)
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Aarohi Selar Private Limited
CIN-U32109HR2008PTCO3S030

Summary of material accounting policies and other explanatory informatien for the year eaded 31 March 2024

In Rs. million unless otherwise stated
As at Asat
P Seaiors 31 March 2024 31 March 2023
16 Other equity

Securities premium
Opeaing balance 54793 54793
Issued capital during the year . s
Balances a1 the end of the year 547.93 £47.93
Equity composent of compound financlal instrument
Opening balance 4860 48.60
Addivions during the year - -
Balances at the end of the year 485.60 43.60
Retained earnings
Opening balance (545.29) (447.95)
Net profit/ (loss) duniag the year 55.99 (97.34)
Balances at the end of the year (489.30) (545.29)
Total other equity 107.23 51.24
Securities premium
Sccuritics peemism represents premium received on issue of shares. The reserve 15 wtilised in accordance with the provisions of the Companics Act,
2013.
Retsined earnings

All the profits or losses made by the Company e transferred o retained caméngs from Statement of Profit and Loss.

Equity compoaent of compound financial instraments

Compound financial instroments are scpanated into hability and equity components based on the terms of contract. On the ssuance of composad
fmancial instruments, the fair value of Kability composent is determined using a market rate for an equivalent instrament. This amount is classificd as a
fimancial lishility measured at amortised cost (net of ransaction costs) untd i is extinguashed on conversion o redemption. The equity component is

classified under other equity.

(Thiz space has been intenniomally left blank)




Aarobi Solar Private Limited
CIN-UI2109HR2MSFTCO38030
Summary of material accounting policies and oiher explanatory information for the year ended 31 March 2024

In Rs. million unless otherwise stated

As at As at
Particulars 31 March 2024 31 March 2023
17 Loog term borrowings
Secured
Term loams
From other parties
Financial institutiond* 3.083.14 128116
Unsecured
Compulsorily convertibie debentare” 477.68 477.01
Unsecured
Loan from Related Pasties (sefcr nose 285° 16.29 o
3STLAL 395807
* Refer nose 29 for terms of borrowings.

*Net of ancillary cost of Rs. 14.50 million (31 March 2023 : Rs. 16,89 millicn) for loan from financial institution.

“Terms and conditions of conversion of cempulsorily coavertible debestures
During carticr years, the Company had isseed 1,922,261 compulsorily convertible debentuses of Rs. 283 each to ACME Solar Holdings Private Limited.

The terms of these CCD as follows:

1. The interest rate of CCD shall be minimum 196 bess than lead kendoc”s intorest rate at all times

2. CCDs may de converted indo equity share ot any time afier the expiry of twenty nine years from the date of alltment af the option of both the CCD
holders and the Company. ln case no option is exercised by the CCD holder and the Company, then CCD shall be compulsorily converted on the last day
of expiry of thirty years from the date of allotment. These CCD shall be mandatorily comveriod into as many number of equity share as arrived at by
dividing the CCD investment amount as ca the date of conversion, by fair value of equity share as on the date of conversion,

3. Interest payment oa the CCD shall stant from commisssoming date of the project or | April 2017 whichever is later.

Accordingly, Company had scparated the liability and equity component of the CCD, and had accordingly recognized financial lability and portion of
cquity amounting to Rs. 48.60 mallion (net of tax),

ﬁmﬂnﬁuNmS&MMmmmm»hlmﬂhbhﬂhhmeﬁﬂﬁvﬁthmdhﬂs
beginning from the date of disbersal of first tranche. Interest is payable on yearly basis.

18 Short term borrowings

Secared
Term loan from finascial insttution™ - 401.76
Current maturitics of long term borrowing®
Financial institution 198,02 175.54
| Unsecured
Loan from related parties** - 1629

. 198.02 9359
| "These were secured against first pari passu chasge on all the movable asscts inchading plant and cquipment, spares ctc. and intangible assets.
' *Net of ancillary cost of Rs. 2 40 million (31 March 2023 : Rs. 2 54 million) for loan from financial institution.

** These are interest free loan and repayable on demand (refer note 28),
I “Refer note 29

(This spoce has Acen intentionally left Nand)
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Asrohi Solar Private Limited
CIN-UI2109TTR20OEPTCO35030
Summary of material accounting policies and other explanstory lnformation for the year ended 31 March 2024

In Rs. million snless otherwise stated
Asat As at
Particulsrs 31 March 2024 31 March 2023
19 Trade payables
Due to micro enterprises and smadl enterprises 003 0.02
Due W others 0.01 0.18
0.04 0.20
Note -
» Disclosure under the Micro, Small and Medium Esterprises Development Act, 2006 (MSMED Act, 2006'): . .
1) The principal amount and the imterest due therecn remaining unpaid 10 any supplier as at the end of cach 0.03 002
accounting yoar
il) The amount of interest paid by the bayer in terms of section 16, aloag with the amounts of the payments made - -
10 the supplicr beyond the appointed day during accounting year
iii) The amount of interest doe and payable for the period of delay in making payments (which bave been paid but - -
wuwmmmpﬂmmmummmmmmm
) mwlwm&mwuuddﬂmmd . -
v) The amount of further interest remaining duc and paysble cven in the succeeding year, until such date when the . -
interest dues as above are actually paid 1o the small enterpeise for the parpose of disallowance as @ deductible
expendituee under section 23 of the MSMED Act, 2006
0.03 0.02

——— et s
The above information regarding dues 10 Micro, Small and Medium enterpriscs as defined under the Micro, Senall and Medium Enterpeises Developenent
Act (MSMED), 2006 has been determined to the extest identified and infarmation available with the Company pursuant to Section 22 of the Micro, Small
and Medium enterprises Development Act (MSMED), 2006,

Trade payable sgeing schedule 2 at 31 March 2024 and 31 March 2023
In Ry. millioa unless otherwise stated

Outstanding for following perieds from the due date of payment
A2 Notdwe  “BUT iy 2ayen  Moretun 3yans A
Undisputed dues - MSME’ . 0.0l 00 - . 0.03
Undisputed dues - Others . 0.0 . - . 0.01
Disputcd does - MSME" - < . . - -
i docs - Others - . - - - .
Total trade payables - 0.02 002 - - 0,04
Outstanding for following perieds from the due date of payment
RS Not duse I‘";::" 1-2 years 23 years  More than 3 years ol
Undisputed dues - MSME" - T 0 - - - .02
Undisputed dues - Others 018 - - - - 0.18
‘l'ohlh‘eg!gila 018 - - - 020

°Manunmsﬂmmmmn¢mmzm
20 Otber fimancial labilities - curreat

Interest accrued on compulsorily convertible debenture 33878 289.55
Payable 10 related partics 041 0.08
Others payable 374 3.98

342.93 393.61




Aarohi Solar Private Limited
CIN-U32109HR2008PT CO38030
Summary of material accounting policies and other explanatory information for the year ended 31 March 2024
In Rs. million unless otherwise stated
For the year ended For the year ended

Particulars

31 March 2024 31 March 2023
22 Revenue from operations
Sale of electricity 591.76 607,89
$91.76 607.89
23 Other income
Interest income
Bank deposits 13.08 349
Loans to related party 94.50 298
Others 0.64 0.64
Excess provisions written back - 0.12
108,22 723
Revenue from contracts with castomers
a) Disaggregation of revenue
Set out below is the disaggregation of the Company”s revenue from contracts with customers:
In Rs. million unless otherwise stated
For the year ended For the year ended
dachiuinns 31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Revenue from contracts with castomens
Based on nature of goods/services
Sale of electricity 591.76 607.89
Total revenue 2]3 607.89
b) Coatract balances
The following table provides information about receivables, contract assets and contract liabilitics from contract with customers:
In Rs. million unless otherwise stated
As at As at
Oy 31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Receivables
Trade receivables 634.8) 909.46
Unbilled revenue for passage of time 53.14 6233
Less : Loss allowance - -
Total receivables (a) 687.95 971.79
Total (at+b-<) 687.95 971.79

Contract assct is the right 1o consideration in exchange for goods or services transferred to the customer. Contract Hability is the entity’s obligation
to transfer goods or services 1o a customer for which the entity has received consideration from the customer in advance. Contract assets are
transferred to receivables when the rights become unconditional i.e. only the passage of time ks required before payment of consideration is due
and the amount is billable. Comtract labilities are recognized as revenuc as and when the performance obligation is satisfied.

There are no contract assets and the comtract labilities during the current year (31 March 2023: nil), therefore disclosure regarding significant
changes in contract assets and contract liabilities have not been furnished.




Aarechi Solar Private Limited
CIN-U32109HR2008PTCO35030
Summary of material accounting policies and other explanatory imformation for the year ended 31 March 2024

¢) Performance obligation
The Comnpany’s performance obligation is satisfied over time when the unlts of electricity are delivered as per the terms of the agreement with the
customer.

d) Reconciling the amount of revenue recogaised in the statement of profit and loss with the contracted price
In Rs millien unless otherwise stated

For the year ended For the year ended

Particulars 31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Revenue as per contract 600.52 616.58
Adjustments:

Other adjustments (8.76) (8.69)
Revenue from contract with customers 591.76 607.89

¢) Tramsaction price - remaining performance obligation
The remaining performance obligation disclosure peovides the aggregate amount of the transaction price yet 1o be recognized as at the end of the
repocting period and an explanation as to when the Company expects to recogaize these amounts in revenue. Applying the practical expedient as
given in Ind AS 115, the Company has mot disclosed the remaining performance obligation related disclosures for contracts as the revenoe
recognised comresponds directly with the value to the customer of the entity’s performance completed till the reporting period.

f) There is no significant estimate involved in the recogaition of revenue from contract.

24 Finance costs
Imterest on
Term loan N4 32661
Working capital loan . 2586
Compulsory convertible debeatare 5382 5360
Lease linbilities (refer note 4) 047 0.45
Others 1.55 -
Ancillary cost of borrowings 254 44.68
Other borrowing cost - 13.60
350.78 464.80
25 Depreciation and amortisation expenses
Depreciation on property, plant and equipment (refer note 3) 90.74 22912
Amortisation of right of use assets (refer note 4) 238 238
93.12 232.10
26 Other expenses
Operation and maintenance expenses 2027 2026
Repairs and maintenance
Plant and equipment 047 086
Rates and taxes 0.79 0.61
Insurance 169 40
Legal and professional fecs 181 363
Payment to anditors (refer note "a’ below) 046 043
Bank charges . 017
Foreign exchange loss (net)” . 485
Loss on sale of fixed assets (net) 599 -
Impairment loss on filr value of asset held for sale (refer note 37) 5729 .
Miscellancous expenses 001 -
91.78 3492
"Represents falr value loss oa derivative contracts (net)
Note:«
a) payment to auditars (inchssive of taxes) as
auditors 0.46 0.43




Anroki Solar Private Limited
CIN-UI2109HR2008PT CO38039
Semmary of material sccounting policies and other explanatory Information for the year ended 31 March 2024

17 Finascial instrements

(i} Fair value blerarchy
Financial assets and Goancial liabilitics src measured st fair value in the fimancial statensent and are grouped o three Levels of a fair value hicrarchy. The three
Levels are defined hased on the obmervabidiey of significant inputs to the measarement, as follows:
Level 1: Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for financial instnanents
Level 2: The fair value of financial instruments that are net traded in an active market i determined using valustion sechniques which maximise the use of
obscrvable market data rely a9 listle a1 possibie an Company specific estimates.
Level 3: If one or more of the significant inputs it not based on observable market data, the instrument is incladed in level 3,

(i) Fimancial assets and liabilities measwred at fair valer — recurring fair valoe measarements In Rs million unless otherwise stated
[31 March 2024 Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total

Fisancial Rabilities
Desivative financial liabilities - - - -
otal fisencial Habdlities - - - o

(4i) Valuation techuique wsed 1o determine fair value
Fair value of forward kecign exchange contract and interest rate and cross currency swap is desermined using dealer! counterparty quotes as ot balance sheet

date

Financial instrements
(1) _Financial isstruments by category Ia Rs million unless otherwise stated

-l
31 March 3034 31 March 2023
e FVIPL | Amorfisdcost |  FVIPL' | Amertised cost

991.50
95.17
687.95
316
18492
1.962.70

100721
673
979
208
830

g
1
i
£
!

insn
501

34293
oo

Totsl finsscial Habilities - 452311

“Fair value through Profit and Loss

The amortised cost of the financial assets and Babilites approccimate the fair valwe on the respective roportng dates.

(i) Risk management
The Company’s activities expose it to credit rak, ligesdity risk and market risk. The Company board of directon has overall responsibaity for the establabment
and oversight of the Compamy’s risk masagement framework. This note explains the sources of risk which the Company s exposed 1o and how the Company
mamages the risk and the related impact i the fimancal staiements.

4351.76
a4
293.61

i
1
i

°
3

4.650.04

(A)  Credit rink
Credit roak is the risk that 2 counterparty fails 4o discharge its obligation 10 the Company. The Company’s exposwre to credit risk is influenced mainly by cash and
cash equivalents, trade recervables and financial assets measured st amortised cost. The Company continuously monmtors defaults of customers and other
counterparties and incorporates this mformation into its credit risk controls.

8)  Credit risk management
4 Credit rish rasng
The Company assesses and mamages credit nisk of financial sasets based on following categories arrived on the basis of assumptions, leges and factors specific
%0 the class of financial assets
A: Low credit risk on fimancial reporting date
B: Moderate aredit risk
C: High credt risk




Anrobi Solar Privete Limited
CIN-U3I2109HR20EPT 038030
Summary of material accounting policies and other explasstory lnformation for the year esded 31 March 2024

The for expected credit loss based on the following:

Asset group Basis of categorisatios Provision for expected credit loss

Low credit risk Trade receivables, cash and cash cquivalents, other bank Balances, Joan and other] 12 month expected credit loss
financial assets

Based on business enviroament in which the Company operates, these have been no defbuls on flmancial assets of the Compasy by the cossserparty. Loss rales
reflecting defoults arc based on actiual credit loss expetence and comtiderning defferences between current and histarical economic conditsons

Asscts are wimten off when there is no reasceable expectation of recovery, such as a debtor declaring bankruptcy or a Itigation decided against the Company.
The Cosnpany coetinues 1o engage with parties whose balances are written off and attempts to enforce repoyment. There have been no cases of write off with the

Company.

I Ry millios unless otherwise stated

Credit ratiag Particalars 31 March 2024 | 31 March 2023
A" Low credit risk other fimmacial sntets 156270 220584
b) Credit risk exposure
(i) Provision for expected credit losses
The Company provides for 12 month expecied crodit losses for following financial assets -
31 March 2024 [0 Ry million wnless otherwine stated
Estimnted gross Expected credit Carrying amount net of
Particslars umth-o-ln‘tlui losses impairment provision
Cash and cash equivalents ENTY - ENTY
Other bank balances 19N . 18492
Loans 9150 - 99150
Trade receivables 68795 - 68755
Other financial asscty 9517 - 9517
31 March 2023
Estimated gros Expected credit Carrying smount net of

ehomens carrying umount at default losses impairment provision
Cash snd caah oquivalents 21181 . 21181
Other bank balances 330 . 8.30
Loans 100721 . 100721
Trade receivables 9779 . 971,99
Other financial assets 6.73 - 673

The Company's major trade receivables and unbilled revenue are only with government owned counterparty and are recoverable under the terms of power
purchase agreements. Therefore, these trade receivables and unbilied revenue are considerod high quality and accardengly o life time expected crodit losses are
recognised on such receivables based on simplified approach. Any provisons agaisst such receivables are for liquidated damages and not related (o credit
worthiness of the counterparty. The Company considers that trade receivables are not credit impaired as these are receivable from Government sadertaking

b" (Also refer note 32)

The credit nak for cash and cash equivalents and other bank balances is considered negligible, since the counterparties are reputable banks with high quality

external credit rasings.

The Company has given loans o group entities and the credit risk m rolation 1o sach losns kas been msscssed a3 negligible

(B) Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is the rsk that the Company will encounter difficslty i mecting the obligations associated with its financial lishilities than are sended by delivering
F’j cash or another financial asset. The Company's approach to mansging hiquidity is to ensure as far as possible, that 8 will have suflicient hguidity 10 meet its

Tiabilities when they are due

Mansgement moniors rolling fosecasts of the Company's liquadity position and cash and cash equivalents on the basis of expected cash flows. The Company

takes into account the Iaquidity of the market m which the Company operates.




Asrohi Selar Private Limited
CIN-UI2I09HR2003PTCO38030

Semmary of material accoontiag pelicies and other explanatory information for the year ended 31 March 2024

Maturities of fimanclal Nabilities

The tables below analyse the Company’s fimancial labilites into relevamt maturity groupings based on thesr contractual matanties

More than §

In Ry million unless otherwise stated

31 March 2024 On demand | Less than | year 1-Syears dals Total
Noa-derivatives
0 gt (iochuling & ) K 49553 193741 254761 5380.55
Lesse babilities (refer note 4 aad 16) - 037 167 1Hmn 1375
Compulsory convertible debentures (inchading smerest) - 191 82 2123 14812 208535
Trade payables - 004 . - 004
Orher financial Nabilities - 415 - - 415
| Total - 891.91 2,151.39 4441.04 7484 |
31 March 2023 Owdemasd |Lessthaniyesr| 1-Syears | Morrtheas Total
Noa-derivatives
Barrowings (scluding interest) 1629 89291 143921 345135 6,289.76
Lease liabilities (refer note 4 and 36) - 035 159 1216 1410
convertble debentures (including interest) . a2n 21231 15347 208980
paynbles - 020 - . 020
fimancial liahilities - 406 - - 4.06
_1629 120025 210311 S.038.27 83979 |

(C) Market risk
#) Foreign exchange risk

The company docs not have sy foreign exchange risk as there are no foreign currency transactions

The Company”s policy is © minimise inerest rate cash flow risk exposures om loag-derm financing. The Campany is exposed %o changes in market interest raes

through bank borrowings at variable isterest rates.

Irstereat rave risk exposure

&s the overall of the to interest rate risk: In Rs millioa unless otherwise stated
Particulars 31 March 2024 | 31 March 2023
Vanahle rate borrowing 328116 3,858 46
Fixed rate borrowing 47768 477.01
| Total barrowings 3T 433347
Senstrvary
Below s the senitivity of peofit of loss and equity changes in interest rutes.
Particulan 31 March 2024 | 31 March 2023
Imterest sensitiviry*

W) Assets

Interest rates ~ increase by 100 basis points {31 March 2023: 100 basis points)

leterest rafes « decrease by 100 hasis (31 March 2023 100 basis points)
'ﬁ' all other variahles constant

uns
{3281

3858
(38.58)|

The Company's fived deposits are carried a1 amortised cost and are fixed rate deposits. They are therefore not subject 10 imerest mite nak &3 defined in Ind AS
107, since neither the carrying amount hor the fusure cash flows will Buctuate because of a change in market interest rates.

Interest rate risk exposure

the overall of the In Ry million unless otherwise stated
Particulars 31 March 2024 | 31 March 202}
Fixed rute 184 92 17404
Total 184.92 174.04

The Company does mot have any inlerest rale risk on these fived deposats.
The Company has given loass 10 group entsties with fived rate of interest. They are therefore not subject to mterest rale rak.




Aszrobi Solar Private Limited
CIN-US2109HR20081TCO38030
Summary of material accounting policies and other explanatory information for the year eaded 31 March 2024

¢) Price risk

The Company does not have any other price nsk than inlerest rate risk and foreign currency risk as disclosed above.

Capital management

For the purpose of the Company’s capital masagement, capital inchades isswed equity capetal, share premum and all other oquity reserves atnbutshile 1o the equity

holders of the parent. The primary objestive of the Company’s capital mamagement is 10 maximise the sharcholder value

The Company manages it capdal structure and makes adjustments & light of changes i economic conditions and the reguirements of the fimancial covenants.
To maintain or adjust the capital strucsure, the Company may adjust the dividend payment 1o sharcholders, resarn capital to sharcholders o¢ issoe new shares.
The Compasry monitors capital wiing o pearing ratio, which i met debe divided by total capital plus net debt. The Company’s policy is to keep an optimsm gearing
ratio. The Company includes withan net dede, interest heaning loans snd bormowings, trade payables, less cash and cash equivalents,

Ino Rs millioa stated
Particulars 31 March 2024 h 2023
Borrowings 37751 435176
Trade payables 0.04 020
Lexse Labilities 501 447
Other financial habikiies 34293 293161
Less: Cash and cash ogaivalents 316 21181
Net debt 411995 443523
Eqanty 127.40 7141
Tetal equity 127.40 7141
Capital and net debt 450064
Gearing ratio (%) 97.00%. 98.42%

In order to achieve this overall objective, the Company's capstal managoment, amongst other thangs, aima to ensure thal # meets financial covenants attached 1o
the imerest bearing Joans and borrowings that define capital structare requirements. Breaches in mecting the financial covenants would permit the bank to

immedaately call kans and bocrowings.

(This space Ias been intentionally leff Mond)




Asroki Solar Private Limited
CIN-UIZI09HRINSPTO038030
Semmary of material sccounting pelicics and otber cxplanatury infarmation fuor the year ended 31 March 2024

I8 Relwted parties

L List of relasd parties s per the requirements of bad-AS 24 - related party dlsclossrs

Ultimate Helding Compasny
MKU Holdings Privase Lisnited

Intermediate Helding Company
ACME Cleastech Solumions Private Limised

Helding compasy
ACME Selar HoMisgs Privse Limited

Sablies Power ' Led

1. Tramactions with related parties and oststanding year end halances

I3 Rs millisn unless etberwise stated

SNe. Particulas For the year eaded

For the year onded

(A) | Trassaction with related partion” Helding Company

Intermediate Hobding and |

Intermediate |hodding
aad Helding Campany

|31 March 2024 |31 March 2023 |

e ——
For the year exded | For the year coded

1 |Expenses incurred on bebalf of the Company
ACME Cleansech Solunoas Pryvase Limsted 0w

ACME Solar Holdings Priveie Limbed o0
Banola Power Private Liunsted .

Cleastech Soletions Private Lisshed 2

ACME Clesmiech Sobstions Privete Limised 162

i
FEi
it

|
:
{
i
I

2026

2096

360

e

om 07
.01 -

0.0 00%

on .

. AR

on 26

145
178

%
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Anrohi Solar Private Limited
CIN-LA2 1M R0esr TCOd 800
Semmary of meterial sccountiag policles and other cxplasatery information for the year snded 31 March 2034
T s milion wnbens wiberwise sinind
As st Ar st Axwt At
3 Marchoe | 3 Merch3os3 | 3| Merch 334 | 30 Marchjen) |
latermedisiz
Lstermediate Holdmg and
Seldiag C Halding sad Oxhers Others
. . o o
oo als - v
- - - 1539
we 3TN0 - .
L) ) 331 - .
. . 116 116
£ - $46 ie
. - 758 5
“w
o
0w
oo
ns
. . 629 -
oos - - .
. - 09 on
- . 0 oot
- . o .
- . 007 .
- - .“ .
a1 o . .
- . - o
= - - oo
TN 24938 .
140
R L . . .
- . 129806 IATIRD
329106 aamne
- - 2088 16 EREIE )
~ - 139 1540
. . 1Lonn 24756
- - 13047y 135

" The tranuacsans weh rebted parties e made on e equvalent 1o eve Dl prevail m e s kngth Unssacton
* The Company han neort recorded smy smparment of rsceivabies relating 0 smouwrss owed by relsied parties. Thes assessen i undenthen of exch reporing period
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Asrohi Selar Privete Limited
CIN-UI2 H9HR200SPTCU33030
Semmary of material accounting policies and other explanstory information for the year ended 31 March 2024

30 Earnings/ (loss) per share

Both the basic and dilted carning (lass) per ahase have been cakulamed using Be loss staributable 1o sharcholders of the parent compasy a3 the numerater, 1. 20

adjustmenss 10 loss were necessary,

The reconciliation of the weighted averape number of shases for the perposes of didused Joss per share to the weighted average number of ordinary shares used in the

caloulation of basic earning/ (loss) per share & s follows:

Particslars

(Joss) attribatable to owners

Nussber of equity shases

cighted average number of shares used in basic earnngs/ (loss) per share
cighted average number of shares wsed in dilused camings/ (Joss) per share
% camnings/ (Joss) per share (Rs.)

Didsted camings/ (Joss) per sharu (Rs )

conversion, have not boen considerad in e calkulation of camnings/ (loss) per share.

31 Details of assets pledged
The carrying amounts of assets plodged a3 security for carrent and nos-current barmowiags we:

Compulsorily convertible debentures, which are convertible into variable mumber of equity shares based spon the fair value of the aquity shares on the date of

In Rs millisn uniess otberwise stated
As As st
31 March 2024 | 31 March 2023
687.95 979
116 21181
1492 £30
. 1,007.21
1304 1.16
Wl 07 2.700.27
2008.64 238741
91 .50 .
713 557
197,27 2.362.98
406134 456325
In
As at Asat
31 March 2024 31 Mareh 2023
7.330 89 561275
735089 561275

(T sproce has been imentionadly left Monk)




Aarohl Solar Private Limied
CIN-UIZ109HR2008P T COXS030
Ssmmary of material accounting policies aod other explanstery lnformation for the year ended 31 March 2024

3} The Government of Andhea Pradesh had issued a governeseat oeder on | July 2019, purssant 10 wiich it comstituted a high-devel negotiation comminice 10 negotiste
and reduce the tanff of solar power purchase agreements ('PAs) 10 Rs. 2.44 per unit Punusst 1o this Goveramest onder, the DISCOM i Andhra Pradesh, with
whom power purchase agreement was enlered, issued notice 10 the Comgany, asking for reduction of the tariff to Rs, 2 48/unit, faiking which the PPA would be
tersinated. The Company appeoached Hoa'"ble High Court of Andhra Pradesh sad the Hon'ble High Count pronoeaced @3 intenin arder on 24 September 2019 by
way of which the Government order and DISCOM sotice were set sside and AP DISCOM was directed o make payment at interim taniff of Rs. 2.44 per sl the
slready pending mamter before Andhra Pradesh Electricity Regulatory Commassion (“Commission”™) is de<ided by the Comnission. The Company challeaged the
said order before divisional bench of Hon bie High Court of Andies Pradesh ("HC') to the extent of interim tarlT of Rs. 2.44 per umit as there was mo soch saticr
related 10 solar developers which was peading before the Commission since the matier related 10 wind developerns alone was pending before the Commission and
thus, the said findings weore incocrest. On 15 March 2022, the Hon'ble HC kssued its order in Company's favour upholding that the order passed by the leamned
single Judge fixing the interim rate oc imterim taniff of Rs. 244 per unit for solar power and for payment of all the pending and fnare bills of all the petitioners, is
sct aside and instead the DESCOM is directed 10 make payment of all peadang and future bills &t the rate mentioned in the PPAs and further, the payment of ssreasy/
pending bills shall be made within a penied of six weeks from the date of the said ceder. Pursuant 10 such order by the Hoa'ble High Court, AP Discoms filed a
petition before Hon'ble Supreme Court againyt the said ceder of High Count of Andhra Pradesh, which was subsogquently dismissed by Hoadle Supreme Count on 2
Janussy 2023
On 4 August 2022, AP DISCOMs communicated 10 the Company that they were availing #he scheme of Mintstry of Power (Late Payment Surcharpe and relased
matiers) Rules 2022 ("LPS roles™). Accordingly, AP Discoms calied upon the Company Re recoaciliation of accounts and stated that the cutstanding dues op 10
May 2022 would be distased in 12 momthly lastalments staning frees August 2022, Accordiagly, AP DISCOMs started paying meathly isstalment against the said
eutstanding dues.

During reconciliation, the Company noted that & unilatersl dedection of duss was being considered effective the plant commissioning date (COD), sowards the
alleged excess installed DC capacity. On 4 April 2023, the Company received a notice from AP DISOOM w disconnect the additonal ssatalled DC panels added
after COD of the project, falling which DISCOM shall be free 10 terminsse the PPA. The Company bad challesged the same before the Commission; however, the
Commission did not provide amy imternim relief In an appeal filed before Appellate Tribwmal for Electricity (APTEL) againat the Comennsson’s interim order
denying appropriate relicf 10 the Company, APTEL vide order dated 8 May 2023 has directed AP Discoms 10 not take any coercive steps against the Comparny and
further, upheld that the AP Discoms are no longer required 1o make payment for the additional DC capacity msnalled, until the petiton ponding before the
Commission is finally disposed of

The Comenission has issued its interim order on 8 November 2023 and direcied the AP Discom 10 pey the amount with respect 10 excess DC capacity instalied prior
o commissioning of the peoject for the Invoices alresdy raised and for future invoices. Consequently, the Discom vide its letter dated | December 2023 has agreed
to pay the withheld amount in six mstallments.  Further, with respect to cxcoss DC capecity instalied afler the commission of the project, the Discom vide its better
dated 19 March 2024 has accepeed 10 pay the withheld ameunt up to the Commission’s order dated | February 2023 issued in other case, in 12 tatallments
provided that the excess DC cagacity installed after the commission of the peegect are removed by the developers. Accoedingly, the Company bas removed the
oxcess DC capacity instaliod afler the commission of the project on 20 November 2023,

As ut 31 March 2024, 10tal undispssed outstanding dues attnbutable 10 excess DC capacity isstalied peior 10 commissioning of the peoject amosnt to Rs. 265
million, total undispesed cutstanding ducs amndetable 10 excess DC capacity installed after commisssoning of the project up to | Febnuary 2023 amount 1o Rs.
462,19 million and outstanding dues attributable 10 excess DC capacity installod afiey comminsionssg of the progect for period from | Febreary 2023 10 31 March
2024 amounts 1o Rs. 63 01 million which sre under dopute and pending before the Comenission for resolution.

Based on the internal snalysss supporied by logal opinion, the management is of the view that it is highly likely that the mamer with respect 1o cutstanding dues
Mmmxmmwumaummmucmmumw-w.mumn

= 1o Rs million unless etherwive stated
Cash flows Nea cash changes As
Forvign exchange | Interest expenses) | 31 March 2024
Additions Payments
movemen! | adjustment
- (173.08 . 254 328116
- - - 067 47768
- (401,76 - - -
. - - - 1629
a - - 054 501
| - (37710 - 426,33 338.7%
| - (956,94)] : 43008 411897 |
In Rs million unless atherwise stated
Cash flows Noa cash changes Asat
Additi v Forcign exchange l-l:‘d capenses’ | 31 March 2023
90433 {700.93)) a2 (16.24)) A6 0
.- - . °w ‘”o’
0220 (406.53) . - 401.76
2056 (168.39) - . 16.29
- (0.32) . 045 447
. 393.62 - 44133 239 55
142749 (1,669.79)| 41.3 42614 464878
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35 Details for funds received and loaned as intermediary*

8) Dusing the current yese, the Company has not recerved any fand from smy person(s) or extaty(ies), including foreign entties (Funding Party) with the understanding
(whether recorded in writing or otherwisc) that the Comgany shall
(1) directly or Indirectly lend or imvest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whalsoever by of on behall of the Funding Party (Ultimate Beneficianes)
or
(18) provide any gusrsssce, security or the like oo behalfl of the Ultimate Beneficiaries

b) mwmmuwummqmn

In Rs million snless otherwise stated
Date Amount
24 March 203 | 62380
ce. New Delhi- 1 10006

In Ry million saless otherwise stated

Solar Holdings Private Lamited (Holding Compeny) 27 Maech 2023 15065
[Address: Mot 152, Secior - 44, Gurugram, Haryana, 122002 28 Maech 2023 43140
31 Macch 2023 4171

%;ﬂwbuuwdh“m 1s Rs million undess otherwise stated
Bencficiarics = . Date Amount

24 March 2023 L3N

27 March 2023 25287

24 March 2023 203526

27 March 2003 39824

24 March 2023 278513

27 March 2023 50487

24 March 223 132533

27 March 2023 25467

36 1ad AS 116 - Lenses
The Company has Jesse agreement usually for a period of 30 years with individuals for land. With the exception of short-term leases and leases of Jow-vabee
undertying assets, cach Jease is reflected on the balance sheot as a right-of-use asset and 2 lease lishility, The Company classifics its right-of-use ssscts in a
consisiont manncr 10 113 property, plast and equipsenm
Each lease gesenilly imposes a restriction that, unless there is a contractual right for the Company 10 sublcase the asset 1o snother party, the right-of-use asset can
only be used by the Company. The Company is peobabited from selling or pledping the underlying leased assets as secunity.

A Lease payments sot included in messsrement of lease Rability
The Company diad not entered into any Jease arrssgemaents which are cither of low value or are considered as short term leases.

B Infermation about exteasion and termination optiens
The lease agreoment provide options for extendion 10 the Company if power purchase agreement s extended.

37 Assets hedd for sale
During the crent year, the management has decided 10 sell the unutiiized capacity (6.90 MW) of plants in Andhra Pradesh (refer note 52). The assets classified &
hedd for sale have beem accounted at lower of carrying amount and fair valug Jess costs to sell

The canrying value and faie value less cont 1 sell of peoperty, plant and equipment classified as assets beld for sale is detailed below:

In Rs

— 31 March 2024 k1]
Particulars Fair valee less Fair value lexs
Carrying value 1o sell Carrylog valee to el
Property, plant and equgment 15525 97.9 - .

Impairment loss amounting to Rs. 57.29 millien (31 March 2023: Rs NJ) has been recognized on classification of property, plant and equipment as sascts held for
sale, as fair value Jess costs to sell is Jower than carrying amount of the said asset.

38 The Ministry of Corporate Affaes (MCA) has prescrided a new reguirement for companies under the proviso 9 Rule 31) of the Companses (Accounts) Reles, 2014
inserted by the Companies (Accounts) Amendment Rules 2021 roquiting companics, which uses accounting software for maintaining its books of account, shall use
only such accounting software which has a feature of recording andit tradl of each and every transaction, creating an odit log of each chasge made in the books of
account slong with the date when such changes were made and ensuring tat the audit trail cannet be disabled.

The Company uses an accounting software (SAF HANA) for maintaining its books of sccount which has a feature of recording sadst trail (odit log) facilnty and the
sarne has opermied throaghout the year for all relevast transactions recorded in the accounting software. However, the audit trail feature s not enablied af datsbase
Jevel for accounting software SAP HANA o log any direct data changes for users with conin privileged access rights. Further there s 00 instance of st trail
featuto being tamperod with ia respect of the accoentieg software where such feature i esabled.
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39 Additioss] regulstory disclosure
(A) The following are snalytical ratios for the year ended 31 Macch 2024 and 31 March 2023:

Particular Numerstor Desominator 31 March 2024 31 March 2023 Variance
(2) Curvent ratio Current assets  Carrent 1.76 245 28.20%**
liabilaties
(b) Delxt equity ratio Total Dedet Sharcholders 2963 60.94 S137T%A
equity
(¢) Debt service coverage ratio Eamings Debt Service 064 051 pLRE S -]
(refer point | below) available for
detn service
(d) Retum on equity ratio (%) Net Profits after  Average S6.32% -£1.06% 165.48% ¢
taxes - Sharcholder’s
Preference Eguity
Dividend (i
wy)
() Inventory barnover ratio Net Sales Avg Inventory Not Applicable Not Applicable Not Applicable
{f) Trade recesvahle tumover matio Net Credit Sales  Avg. Accounts o 049 45.06%
Recervable &
Unbilled
revenue
(g) Trade payable turnover rabio Net Sales Avg Accounts Not Applicable Not Applacable Not Applicable
Payables
(h) Net capital sumover ratio Net Sales Working Capital 142 047 204 41%
(1) Net peofit ratio (%) Net profis Net sales 9.46% ~1601% 155.09%*
(i) Returm on capital empioyed ratio (%) Faming before  Capital 13.20% T87% 67.71%
(refer posat 2 below) inerest and Employed
axes
(k) Retern on invessment ratio (%) Income Average Net Applicable Not Applicable Not Apphicatie

genermed from  invested funds
vessed funds  in reasury
imvestments

Reasons for variasce

**Decrease in ratio 15 on account of rechassification of shoct term losn to long ferm.
* Decrease in ratio is due o repayment of short term Joan,

@ Increase in fimance cost and debt repayment resulted in decrease in ratio.
*Incresse in patio is due 10 icresse in peofit in curment year.

**Decrease in ratio is doe 10 more collections.

Other cxplasatory pointy
1 Eaming foe Dot Service = Net Profit afier taxes + Non-cash operating expenses lke depreciation and other smonizations + Interest + other adjustments like Soms
on sale of Frced assets esc.
Deix service « Interest & Lease Payments + Principal Ropayments
“Net Profit afier tax" means reported amosnt of “Prefit / (loss) for the penod™ and it does not inclede items of othes compredensive mcome.
2 Capital Employed = Tangitde Net Worth + Total Debt + Deferred Tax Lisbilisy

(B) The Company has not boen declared as wilful defaulter by any hank oc fimancial institution or any other lender.

‘ (C) The Company docs sot have any charges or satisfaction, which ks yet 10 be regisered with Registrar of Compandes, beycad the stanstory period prescribed under the

| Companies Act, 2013 and the rules made therzunder.

| (D) The Company has net entesed into sevy transaction which has not been recorded iff TR books of account, that has been susrendered or disclosed as income during the
year in the tax asscssments under the Income Tax Act, 1961 (vach s, scarch or survey or any other relovant provisions of the Income Tax Act, 1961)

i

l (E) The Company has not traded o invested i Crypio cutrency of virmaal currency during the year,
' (F) The Company does ot have any Benami property and further, no peoceedings have been initiated or are pending against the Company, in this regasd.

(G) The Company has not essered into any wamactions with struck off companics, as defined under the Companies Act, 2013 and rules made theroender,
(H) The Company has not advasced oc loaned or investad funds to any ofher person(s) or entity(iex), incleding foeeign entities (Intermediaries) with the understanding

that the Intermediary shall:
(i) directly o indiirectly lend or imvest in other persons or entities identified m any manner whatsoever by oc om behall of the company (Ultimate Beneficiaries) oc

(1) peovide any guarantes, security of the like 1o of on behalfl of the Ultimate Beneficanes
(1) Pursuant 10 the terms of the sanctioa letiers, the Company is not required %o file any quarterly retum o statement with such lendors,
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40 Sczment reporting
The Company is ongaged in the busisess of ssle of dectricity. Chief Operatisg Decision Maker (CODM) reviews the fimancial infoemation of the Company 38 &

whele for decision-msting and accordingly the Company has a single reportable segment. All the revenue has been billled 10 2 single customer. Further, the
operations of the Company are limited within one geographical segment. Hence, mo further declosure is required 10 be made.

41 Cenam amousts (currescy value of pecentages) shown in the vanous tables and paragraphs included in the financial statements have been rounded off o truncated
as deemed sppropriate by company.

42 Subseguent event
The Company has evaluated events and transactioss, which ocowred subsequent %o the balance sheet date but prior 10 the date when financial statoments were
svailable 10 be issued. There wero a0 material sublequent event whach are requred 10 be disclosed.
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